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CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS' REPORT
Principal activity and review of business

The Directors present the financial statements of Clerical Medical Investment Group Limited (“the Company’) The Company isa
hmited habihity company domiciled in the Umted Kingdom

The principal activity of the Company 1s the undertaking of ordinary longterm tnsurance and savings business and associated
investment activities in the United Kingdom and through non-UK branches The Company offers a range of products such as
annuities and investment type products principally through independent financial advisers  The Company also reinsures business
with subsidiary undertakings and with insurance entities external to the Lloyds Bankmg Group This includes the majority of its
existing pensions linked business, which 1s remsured to its subsidiary, Clerical Medical Managed Funds Limited ("CMMF")

With effect from 20 January 2009, the Company began to aceept remnsured protection business from Scottish Widows plc, another
life company within Lloyds Banking Group plc  As a result of this transaction, gross premiums have increased by £81 5m and loss
before tax has increased by £38 3m

From 1 July 2009, the Company ceased writing new pension contracts However 1t continues to receive increments on existing
contracts

On 27th July 2009, Clerical Medical Finance ple, a fellow subsidiary undertaking, redeemed and cancelled part of its subordmated
debt, the proceeds of which are loaned to the Company as described in note 25 The loan between Clertcal Medical Finance plc and
the Company was redeemed in the same ratio to that of the external redemption, resulting in no gain or loss to the Company

On 31 December 2009, the Company recaptured 1ts portfolio of annuity business remsured to 11s subsidiary underntaking, Clenical
Medical Managed Funds Limited This resulted in the de~recognition of remsurance assets of £2 Obn and a negative profit impact of
£112 2m, being the consideration paid for the recaptured business

Resuits and dividend

The result of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 15 & loss after tax of £287 5m (2008 profit of £261 9m) and this has
been transferred to reserves

During the year, no dividends were paid (2008 £610m) The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend 1n respect of
the year ended 31 December 2009

Key performance indicators

Total gross premiums recerved from policyholders were £1,978 ém (2008 £2,800 3m) Of this, £914 Om (2008 £784 2m) was
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income with the remainder being subject to deposit accounting

Funds under management are approximately £16 7bn (2008 £15 4bn)

The Directors beheve that the Coempany currently has adequate capital resources and will continue to do so 1n the foreseeable future
Further information on the capital position of the Company 1s given mn note 32

The Directors consider that the above key performance indicators are appropriate to the principal activity of the Company In
addition, the Directors are of the opinion that the Financial Services Authority’s (FSA) returns capital resource requirement
information and regular actuarial reports, 1n conjunction with the informaton presented 1 the financial statements as a whole,
provide the management information necessary for the Directors to understand the development, performance and position of the
business of the Company

The Company also forms part of the Insurance Division of Lloyds Banking Group ple  The development, performance and position
of this Division are discussed i the Group’s annual report, which does not form part of this report

Future outlock

The Directors consider that the Company’s activities will continue unchanged in the foreseeable future

Principal risks and uncertamties

The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are subject 1o a number of nsks The financial risk

management objectives and policies of the Company and the exposure to market, insurance, credit and financial soundness risk are
set out m note 32
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

In additton, the Company 15 also exposed to financial and prudential regulatory reporting nsk, m particular the nisk of reputational
damage, loss of investor confidence and/or financial loss artsing from the adoption of tnappropriate accounting policies, ieffective
controls over financial reporting or over prudential reguiatory reporting and financial reporting fraud  The financial and risk
management objectives and policies of the Company in respect of financial and regulatory risk are also set out in note 32

The company, like other insurers, 1s subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of business  Whalst 1t 13 not practicable to
forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings, management does not believe that such
proceedings, including hugation, will have a material effect on the results and financial position of the Company

Directors

The names of the current Directors are listed on page 3 Changes n directorships during the year and since the end of the year are as
follows

A G Kane (Appomnted 4 March 2009)

J Van Der Wielen (Appointed 4 March 2009)
$ Colsell {Resigned 23 March 2009)

F Dawson (Resigned 23 March 2009)

R Dcvey (Resigned 23 March 2009)

P Gale (Resigned 31 December 2009}

B Duffin (Resigned 18 March 2010)

P D Loney (Appointed 25 March 2010)

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments are set out 1n note 33

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each Director confirms that, as far as they are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditers are
unaware Relevant information 15 defined as “mnformation needed by the Company’s auditors in connection with preparing thesr

report”

Each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken 1n his duty as a Director tn order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given, and should be interpreted in accordance with, the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006
Change of auditors

Following the resignation of KPMG on 30 Apri 2009, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as auditors of the company
with effect from the same date by resolution of the members dated 30 Apnil 2009

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, auditors duly appointed by the members of the company shail, subject to any
resolution 1o the contrary, be deemed to be reappointed for the next financial year and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will therefore
continue 1n office

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company follows “The Better Payment Practice Code” published by the Department for Business Innovation and Sklls (“BIS™),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers A copy of the code and information about it may be obtained from the BIS, Nol
Victona Street, London, SWIH OET

The Company’s policy 1s to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the
date of the mvoice, except where other arrangements have been negouniated It 1s the policy of the Company to abide by agreed terms
of payment, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of contract

The processing of invoices from suppliers and settlement of trade creditors 1s undertaken by a separate company within the Lloyds
Banking Group The number of days shown in this report, to comply with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, 1s 20 days
(2008 19 days)

ehalf of the Board of Directors

Sally Mayer
25 March 2010
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Darectors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directers to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare the financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) as adopted by the
European Union  Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the proft or loss of the Company for that period In prepanng these
financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them conststently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained i the financial statements,

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company wall
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP
LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Clerical Medical Investment Group Limied for the year ended 31 December 2009 which
compnse the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes 1n
Equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphiedin their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards ( ‘IFRSs™} as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully n the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities set out on page 6, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s member asa body 1n accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compamies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, 1n giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any cther purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into who hands 1t may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent 1n writing

Scope of the audit of financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error  Thas includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s ctrcumstances and have been consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of the Company's loss and cash flows
for the year then ended,

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

*  have been properly prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given 1n the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are preparedis
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, wn our
opimon

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recetved from
branches not visited by us, or

. the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

. certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Clare Thompson (Sentor Statutory Auditor)}

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Brstol

25 March 2010
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

2009 2008
{Restated}
Notes £m £m

Revenue
Gross eamed premiums 9140 784 2
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 22 1,761 7 (155 2)
Premiums net of reinsurance 26757 6290
Fee and commussion income 3 776 784
Investment income 4 703 1 746 5
Net realised gains on assets and habilities at fair value though income 5 131 7852
Net fair value losses on assets and Liabilities at fair value through mcome 6 (44 0} (2,023 3)
Other income 375 -
Total revenue 34630 2158

Expenses
Gross claims and benefits 1,828 4 9300
Claims recovenes from reinsurers (185 6) (201 5)
1,642 8 7285
Change 1n insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habihities (568 6) 22114
Change m mvestment contract without DPF liabilities 949 5 (2984 7)
Change in remnsurers’ share of habilities 22 844 4 765 4
Change n unallocated surplus 23 2012 (1,028 2)
1,426 5 (1,0361)
Operating expenses 7 5613 4016
Expenses for asset management services recerved 761 529
Finance cosis 9 804 103 1
7178 5576
Total expenses 3,787 1 2500
Loss before tax (3241 (34.2)
Taxation credit 10 366 2961
{Loss)/profit for the year (287 5) 2619

Other comprehensive income

Movement in net investment hedges 24) -
Currency translation differences 94 {9 0)
Other comprehensive income 70 90)
Total comprehensive income (280.5) 2529

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral part of these financial statements

The 2008 comparatives have been restated as explamned n note 38 with no overall impact on either profit or net assets




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DPECEMBER 2009

2009 2008 I Jan 2008
(Restated) (Restated)
Notes £m £m £m
ASSETS
Intangible assets 11 2211 2708 2940
Deferted costs 12 4749 4779 4131
Deferred tax assets 13 730 670 205
Investment in subsidianes 14 G634 1,1147 9359
Property 15 60 774 1614
Investment properties 16 9454 1,214 3 1,963 5
Remsurers’ share of insurance contract and investment contract with 22 5215 22704 2,294 2
DPF habihties
Prepayments and accrued income 13 24 173
Current tax receivable 13 290 78 1057
Financial assets
Reinsurers’ share of investment contract without DPF habilities 26 84736 74565 88051
Dervative financial mstruments 17 5313 6623 572
Loans and recetvables 13 5387 686 1 6269
Investments at fair value through income 19 16,594 0 15,0792 172724
Cash and cash equivalents 20 3566 2893 2678
Total assets 29,730.3 29,676 1 33,2350
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company’s equity
shareholders
Share capital 21 700 700 1,629 0
Share premmum 21 10 10 10
Retained eamings 1,5522 1,8327 6308
Total equity 1,623 2 1,903.7 2,260.8
Liabilities
Insurance contract and mmvestment contract with DPF hiabihties 22 16,3394 16,908 0 15,2155
Unallocated surplus 23 6704 469 2 1497 4
17,009 8 17,3772 16,712 9
Deferred tax liabilities 13 2207 2505 409 5
Current tax payables 13 385 - -
Provisions for other habiliies and charges 16 22 19
Accruals and deferred income 24 393 466 513
Financial habilities
Subordinated debt 25 6097 1,316 3 1,014 8
Investment contract without DPF habilities 26 8,6849 7,761 0 12,424 3
Denvative financial instruments 17 1028 1311 379
Other liabilities 27 1,383 8 7185 2702
Borrowings 28 160 169 0 514
Total habilities 28,1071 27,772 4 30,9742
Total habihities and equity 29,7303 29,676 1 33,2350
Approved by the Boar{d on 25 March 2010
T A Leonard
Director

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral pan of these financial statements

The 2008 comparatives have been restated as explained 1n note 38 with no overall impact on either profit or net assets




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
2009 2008
(Restated)
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax 324 1) (34 2)
Adjusted for
Dividends and loan interest received from subsidiary undertakings (e (64 9)
Impairment of property 15 28 -
Gain on disposal of property - (15 5)
Impairment of subsidiary undertakings owned by the shareholder fund 109 5 -
Amortisation and rmparment of mtangible assets 11 495 283
Movement 1n deferred costs 12 30 (64 8)
Finance costs 9 804 103 1
Other comprehensive income relating to monetary items 70 90
Foreign exchange on intangible assets 03 -
Net decrease 1n operating assets and liabiliies 29 3543 3774
Taxation recerved 181 188 5
Net cash flows from operating activities 2999 508 9
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property 15 - (204)
Proceeds from sale of property - 687
Additions to intangible assets 11 1) R}
Dividends and loan interest received from subsidiary undertakings 09 64 9
Net cash flows from investing activities 08 108 1
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid 30 - (610 0)
Finance costs paid 9 (30 4) (103 1)
Net cash flows from financing activities {80 4) (713 1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2203 (96 1)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 120 3 216 4
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20 3406 120 3

The notes set out on pages 12 te 65 are an integral part of these financial statements

The 2008 comparatives have been restated to reflect the reclassifications explamned 1n note 38




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009
Notes Issued share Share Retained
capatal premium earnings Total
£m £m £ m £m

Balance as at 1 January 2008 1,629 0 i0 6308 2,260 8
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2529 2529
Dividends paid 30 - - 6100) (610 0)
Reduction of Issued Share Capital under Section 641
of the Companigs Act 2006 (1,559 0) - 1,559 0 -
Balance as at 31 December 2008 700 10 1,832 7 1,903 7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (280 5) (280 5)
Balance as at 31 December 2009 700 10 1,5522 1,623 2

Not all of the above amounts can be distnibuted 1o the equity shareholders since the Company 1s required to meet regulatory capital

requirements Further details are given n note 32

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an 1ntegral part of these financial statements

11
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

(a)

(b)

Accounting policies
Summary of sigmficant accounting policies

The Company has identified the accounting policies that are most sigmiftcant to its business operations and the understanding
of its results

The financial statements comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes in equity and the related notes The preparation of the financial statements necessitates the use of
estimates and assumptions mn applying the accounting policies set out on pages 12 to 24 The accounting policies which relate
to nsurance contract and investment contract with DPF Liabilities (policy s), intangible assets (policy f), the ascertainment of
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilittes (policy c) and the determimation of impairment losses (policy p) are
those which involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments These estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabulities, contingent or otherwise, at the reporting date, as well as affecting the reported
income and expenses for the year

In each case, the determination of these 1s fundamental to the financial results and position of the Company, and requires
management to make complex judgments based on information and financial data that may change in future periods
Although the estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current facts as at the reporting date, the actual
outcome may differ from those estimates

The sigmficant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements, which have been consistently
apphed to all peniods presented in these financial statements, are set out below

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared

(1} 1n accordance with the International Accounting Standards { ‘lASs”) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs™) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Standards and Interpretations (“SICs™) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations (“IFRICs™) 1ssued by its International Financial Reporting
Interpretaions Commuttee, as endorsed by the European Union,

(2) 1n accordance with those parts of the Compames Act 2006 apphcable to companies reporting under IFRSs,

(3) n respect of the Company’s with profit fund hiabilities, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (“FRS™) 27
“Life Assurance” 1ssued by the Unied Kingdom Accounting Standards Board, and

(4) under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and certain financial assets
and financial habihiies at fair value through income, as set out in the relevant accounting policies

The Dwrectors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1n business for the foreseeable future
Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basts

In accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, asseis and hiabthties i the balance sheet are presented in
accordance with management’s esumated order of liquidity Analysis of the assets and habihities of the Company into
amounts expected to be received or settled within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 monthsafter
the reporting date (non-current) 1s presented in the notes

The Company 15 exempt by virtue of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements from the requirement to

prepare group Financial Statements These Financial Statements present information about the Company as an individual
undertaking and not about its group

Standards and interpretations effective in 2009

A number of standards, amendments to and interpretations of published standards which have the potential to impact on the
Company’s operations have been 1ssued and are mandatory for accounting penods begmnning on or after 1 January 2009
Their relevance to the Company’s operations 1s assessed at note 36

Details of standards and interpretations in 1ssue but which have not been adopted early are set out at note 37

Product classification

The Company 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance nisk or financial risk or both

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

Accounting policies (continued)
Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts which transfer sign:ficant snsurance sk Such contracts may also transfer financial
nsk As a general guideline, the Company defines as sigmificant insurance risk the possibihity of having te pay benefits on the
occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were not to occur
Once a contract has been classtfied as an insurance contract, 1t remains an msurance contract for the remainder of its hfetime,
even if the msurance nsk reduces sigmficantly over time

Investment contracts

Any long term contracts not consitdered to be mnsurance contracts under IFRSs because they do not transfer significant
insurance nisk are classified as investment contracts  Such contracts are further analysed between those with and without a
discretionary participation feature (“DPF™)

A DPF 1s a contractual right that gives investors the night to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional
discretionary benefits or bonuses that are likely to be a significant portion of the total centractual benefits, through
participation 1n the surplus arising from the assets held in the fund The Company has the discretion within the constraints of
the terms and conditions of the instrument to allocate part of this surplus to the policyholders and part to the Company’s
equity shareholders Investment contracts with DPF are accounted for 1in the same manner as insurance contracts 1n
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

Investment contracts without DPF are contracts that neither transfer sigmificant insurance nsk nor contain a DPF

Hybrid contracts

For certain investment contracts, the contract can be partly invested in units which contain a DPF and partly without Where
the contract 1s split, part 1s allocated as an investment contract and part as an investment contract wath DPF

Financial assets and financial habihities

Management determines the classification of 1is financial assets and financial liabihities at initial recogmtion  Management’s
policies for the recognition of specific financial assets and financial habilities, as 1dentified on the balance sheet, are set out
under the relevant accounting policies

Financial assets are derecognised when the nights to receive cashflows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Company has transferred substanuially all of the risks and rewards of ownerstup  Financial hiabilities are derecogmsed only
when the obhgation specified in the contract 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

All financial assets and financial habihties are designated at fair value through income, with the exception of certain loans
and receivables (policy n), borrowings (policy y) and other financial habihities (polhicy x) which are stated at amomsed cost,
and denvatives, as described further 1n policy m  The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
and financial habihties were acquired Certain financial assets and financial llabihties, whose default accounting treatment
would be to record these balances at amortised cost, are instead designated at fair value through income as they are held to
match msurance and investment contract liabilities linked to the changes an fair value of these assets and habihties, thereby
reducing measurement inconsistencies, and reflecting the fact that these are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis Information on these balances 1s provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company’s key
management The Company’s investment strategy 1s to invest in equity and debt securities and to evaluate the Company’s
investments with reference to their fair values

Eair value methodology

The Company has adopted the amended IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures’ from 1 January 2009
Further information on the impact on the Company of the adoption of this amendment 1s set out 1n note 36
All financial instruments carried at fair value are categonsed into a “fair value tuerarchy as follows

(1) Level 1

Quoted prices (unadjusted) m active markets for identical assets and habilities to those being valued An active market 15 one
m which arm’s length transactions n the instrument occur with both sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis Examples include histed equities, listed debt secunties, quoted unit trusts traded 1n active
markets and exchange traded denvatives such as futures

13
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

1

(d)

Accounting policies (continued)
() Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (as prices)
or inchrectly (derived from prices) If the asset or liablity has a specified (contractual) term, a Level 2 mput must be
observable for substantially the full term of the asset or hability Level 2 inputs include the following

*  Quoted prices for similar (but not 1dentical} instruments in active markets,
Quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, where prices are not current, or
price quotations vary substantially either over time or among market makers,

* Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the instrument (for example, interest rates and yield curves
observable at commonly quoted intervals and default rates),

+  Inputs that are derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data by correlation or other means

Examples of these are secunties measured using discounted cash flow models based on market observable swap yields, |
mvestment property measured using market observable information, and histed debt er equity securities in a market that 1s !
mactive

(1) Level 3

Inputs for the asset or hability are not based on observable market data (unobservable mnputs) Unobservable inputs may
have been used to measure fair value where observable mputs are not available  Thas approach allows for situations i which
there 1s little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date {or market information forthe inputs to
any valuation models) Unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions the Company considers that market participants would
use n pricing the asset or habihty, for example certain private equity nvesiments held by the Company

Where estimates are used, these are based on a combination of independent third-party evidence and internally developed
models, calibrated to market observable data where possible  Whilst such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 15 beheved
that changing one or more of the assumptions to reasonably possible altemative assumptions would not change the fair value
significantly

Further analysis of the Company’s mstruments held at fair value 1s set out at note 32

The Company’s management, through a Fair Value Commutiee, review information on the fair value of the Company’s
financial assets and financtal habihities and the sensitivities to these values on a regular basis

No assets are classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale Denvative assets (other than a derivative which1s a
designated and effective hedging instrument) are classified as held for trading  Whth the exception of derivative liabilities, no
habilities are classified as held for trading Further information on derivatives 1s set out at pelicy (m)

Transaction costs incidental to the acquisition of a financial asset are expensed through the statement of comprehensive
income, within net realised gains and losses on assets and liabilities at fair value through income

Financial assets and financial habihities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet only when there 1s a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the hability simultaneously

Revenue recogmtion

Premium mncome

Premiums received 1n respect of hife insurance contracts and mvestment contracts with DPF are recognised as revenue when
they become payable by the policyholder and are shown before deduction of commussion  Premiums ceded to remnsurers are
recogmsed when the related gross premiums are recogmsed  Gross and ceded premiums are recorded through the relevant

lines 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income mncludes deferred income n respect of future cherges and amounts recetved as charges in respect
of remsured umit hnked business where, due to the remnsurance, the correspondmng adjustment to umt hinked investment
contract habilities 1s included within the income statement of the remsuring company

14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

1

(e)

n

Accounting policies (contmued)
lnvestment megme

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial 1nstruments 1s recogmsed n the statement of comprehensive income as it
accrues, within mnvestment income

Dividends recervable in respect of listed shares or Open Ended Investment Company (OEIC) distributions are recognised on
the date that these are quoted ex-dividend, other dividend income 15 recogmsed when received  All dividends received are

recognised through the statement of comprehensive income, within investment mcome

Rental income 1n respect of investment properties 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive 1ncome, within mvestment
income, when the nght to receive payment 1s established

Expense recognition
Claims

Claims are recorded as an expense on the earher of the matunty date or the date on which the claim 1s notified  Claims
recoveries from reinsurers are recognised when the related claims are recognised Claims are recognised through the relevant
lines 1n the statement of comprehensive income

Operating expenses

Commission paid in respect of the business written by the Company 15 recogmsed through the statement of comprehensive
income, within operating expenses  Where certain criteria are met, commission and other acquisitton costs may be deferred
The circumstances under which such costs are deferred are set out at policy (g) Subsequent amortisation of deferred costs 1s
recognised as set out mn policy (g)

Other operating expenses are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income as incurred, within operating expenses

Expenses for asget management services recerved

Expenses for asset management services recerved are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as they accrue,
within expenses for asset management services recerved

Finance costs

Interest expense for all interest-bearmg financial instruments 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as 1t
accrues, within finance costs

Dividends payable

Dhividends payable on erdinary shares are recogmsed in equity in the period in which they are approved
Intangible assets

(1)  Acquired value of 1n-force business

Investment contracts acquired n business combinations are measured at fair value at the time of acquisition  This
measurement includes the recogmuion of an acquired value of irforce (“acquired VIF”) asset which reflects the present value
of future cashflows expected from the business acquired The asset 15 shown gross of attnibutable tax and a corresponding
deferred tax hability has been established Amortisation of the acquired VIF balance and related tax 1s carried out on a best
estimate basis over the estimated life of the contracts The amortisation charge for the year 1s recogmised through the
statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses  The carrying value of the acquired VIF balance 1s tested for
impairment at each reporting date Further information on the Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

(n) Software development costs
Acquired computer software hcences are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire and 1o bring to use the

spectfic software These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected useful hfe of the software, not
exceeding a penod of five years
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(g)

(h)

Accounting policies (continued)

Costs that are directly associated with the preduction of identifiable and umque software products controlled by the
Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recogmsed as intangible
assets, subject 10 de minims himnts Direct costs include the software development team’s employee costs and an appropnate
portion of relevant overheads All other costs associated with developing or maintaining computer sofiware programmes are
recognised through the statement of comprehensive income as an expense as incurred, within operating expenses

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their expected
useful hives, not exceeding a period of five years Subsequent expenditure 1s only capitalised when it increases the expected
future economic benefits of the specific asset to which it relates

The amortisation charge for the year 1n respect of software licences and software development costs 15 recogmised through the
statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses The carrying value of the assets 1s teged for impairment at
each reporing date  Further mmformation on the Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Deferred costs
1)) Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new msurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF which are incurred dunng a financaal
period but which relate to subsequent financial periods, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future
revenue margins The deferred acquisition cost asset 15 amortised over the ifetime of the related contracts based on the
pattern of margins ansing from these contracts At each reporting date the asset 15 reviewed and 1s impaired where 1t 18 no
longer expected to be recoverable out of future margins on the related insurance contracts and investment contracts with

DPF The change in the value of deferred acquisition costs for the year 1s recognised through the statement of comprehensive
mcome, within operating expenses

(n) Deferred origimmation costs

Costs whtch are directly attributable and incremental to securing new investment contracts without DPF are capitahsed This
asset 1s subsequently amortised over the estimated contractual hifetime of each policy on a straightline basts unless there 1s
evidence to support an alternative recognition basis Where an altemative recognition basis 1s applied, this 1s calculated by
reference to experience information 1n respect of the period over which costs associated with contracts are incurred At each
reporting date the recoverability of the asset 1s reviewed and the asset 1s impaired 1f projected future margins from the related
mvestment contracts without DPF are less than the carrying value of the deferred costs The change 1n the value of deferred
origination costs for the year 1s recogmised through the statement of comprehensive income, within operating expenses

Investment in subsidiaries

The Company owns a vanety of subsidiaries Certan subsidiaries trade with a view to making a profit, and the nisks and
rewards of owning those subsidianes prnimanly rest with the equuty shareholders of the Company Those subsidiaries are held
imtially at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the holding, then subsequently at cost subject to
impairment  Further information on the Company’s impairment policy is set out at policy (p)

In addition, certain subsidiaries are held primarily as vehicles through which specific investments are held as part of the
actively managed tnvestment portfolios Those subsidiaries hold assets which aredesignated at fair value through income 1n
accordance with IAS 39 * Financial Instruments Recogrition and Measurement” and pnimarily match policyhelder liabihities
Accordingly, subsitdiaries which are managed as part of policyholder investment funds are armed at fair value and changes n
therr fair value are reflected 1n the statement of comprehensive income, within net gains and losses on assets at fair value
through imcome

Investments at fair value through income
Investments at fair value through income compnise debt and equity secunties
Classificanon

A financial asset 15 classified 1n this category at inception 1f acquired principally for the purpose of selling 1n the shortterm,
if it forms pan of a portfolio of financial assets in which there 1s evidence of short-term profit-taking, or 1f designated as such

Recognition
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmised on the trade date, 1 ¢ the date the Company commuts to purchase the

asset from, or dehver the asset 1o, the counterparty Investments are imtially recognised at fair value through income, being
the fair value of the consideration given, and are subsequently remeasured at fair value
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1. Accounting pohicies (continued)

Measurement

Quoted investments

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices  If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, and
also for unlisted securities, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techmiques  These include the use of
arm’s length transactions and reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, making maximum use of market
mputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs  The following paragraphs detail the valuation techniques
specific to equity and debt secunities

For equity tnvestments that are quoted and actively traded in organised financial markets, fair value 15 determined by
reference 10 Stock Exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date  Prices are provided by
vendors such as Reuters or Bloomberg or by direct reference to the Stock Exchange

For quoted debt secunty investments, brd prices at the close of business on the reporting date are obtained from data vendors
who obtamn prices from a number of leading brokers, investment banks and market makers Where no independent price 1s
available, a valuation techmque 1s used to determine fair value The techmque uses a spread over a comparable term gilt as
the best estimate of fair value Spreads are calculated by reference to the wider market movement in credit spreads, the way n
which the security 1s structured, other assets 1ssued by the issuer or other assets with similar charactenistics

For corporate bonds, the Company’s management perform a comparison of infermatien recerved from the index provider
used against other available price sources on a monthly basis to ensure that prices can be supported by market data

In addition to the measurement pohictes, nvestment asset prices are reviewed weekly to identfy those assets where the price
has not moved for at least three days This review provides an initial indicat:on that the market for each 1denufied asset may
be inactive These assets are then reviewed by management who may 1dentify an alternative pricesource for assets which in
their view are siill actively traded On conclusion that a particular asset 15 1lhguid, management will identify an alternative
valuation technique A review of all 1lliquid assets and prices obtained or calculated 15 conducted by the Fair Value
Operations Group

Unquoted investments

In order to ensure that a fair value 1s recogmsed for unquoted or (lliquad debt secunities, the pnimary price source 1s an
external broker valvatton If available, a further external broker valuation 1s sought as a secondary valuation source m order
to validate the primary source A formal review 15 then carried out which challenges the external valuation and includes
consideration of the impact of any relevant movements i underlying vanablessuch as

¢ underlying movements m the relevant markets, for example credit spreads,
how current transactions are being priced in the market,
¢  how the security 13 structured, and
e any supporting quantitative analysis as appropriate, for example with referenceto Bloomberg or mnternal models

The fair value of holdings 1n OEICs and Umt Trusts 1s determined as the last published price applicable to the OEIC sub-
fund or the Unit Trust at the reporting date  These are classified as unquoted equity investments

For unquoled equity mvestments such as private equuty, fair value 1s determined by reference to the most recent valuation
provided by the General Partner, adjusted for any cash movements or other relevant information published by the General
Partner since the last valuation point, which s likely to be up to one quarter prior to the reporting date

Property investments through special purpose vehicles

The Company nvests in a number of investment properties through holdings 1n special purpose vehicles(SPVs) SPVs are
imtally recognised at fair value through income, being the fair value of the consideration given After inttial recogmition such
assets are accounted for and measured at fair value, which equates 10 the published net asset value of the company This
valuation 1s based on open market vatuations of the properties held by the SPVs, as provided at the reporting date by
independent valuers and adjusted where this 1s required tc ensure comphance with IFRS

Net reahised gains and losses on assets and habilities at fair value through income

Realised gains and losses on assets and liabilities are calculated as the difference between net sale proceeds and the oniginal
cost and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income m the peniod 1n which they anse, within net realised gains
and losses on assets and ltabilhities at fair value through income
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o

(k)

Accounting pohicies (continued)

Net fair value gains and losses on assets and lrabilities at fair value through income

Unrealised gains and losses on assets and Liabilities are calculated as the chfference between the current valuation of the asset
at the reperting date and the onginal cost Movements in unrealised gains and losses anising are recognised 1n the statement
of comprehensive income 1n the pertod in which they anse, within net fair value gamns and losses on assets and liabilities at
fair value through income The movernent 1n the unrealised gains and losses recognised 1n the year also includes the reversal
of unrealised gains and losses recognised 1n earher accounting periods 1n respect of asset disposals in the current peried

Property

All property {other than mvestment property) 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impaimment 1n value
Subsequent costs are inctuded 1n an asset’s carrying value only when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits related to
the asset will flow to the Company and such costs can be measured relhably

Depreciation of property 1s calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the difference between the cost and the estimated
residual value over the estimated useful lives of these assets The depreciation charge 1s recognised through the statement of
comprehensive income, within other operating expenses

The peniods generally applicable are

. Buldings 40 years

Land 1s considered to have an indefinite useful life and 15 therefore not depreciated

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each reporting date

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 11 circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable In the event that an asset’s carrying amount 1s determined to be greater than the recoverable amount, 1t 15
written down immediately Further information on the Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Investment properties

Investment properties, which are held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both, are initially measured
at fair value, being the fair value of the consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs  Subsequently,
on a quarterly basis and at each reporting date, such properties are carried at fair value as assessed by qualified external
appraisers Fair value 1s based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference 1n the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset If this information 1s not available, alternative valuation methods such as discounted cash flow
analysis or recent prices in less acttve markets are used Investment property being redeveloped for continuing use as
mvestment property, o1 for which the market has become less acive, continues 1o be measured at ferr value

Gams or losses arising from changes 1n the fair values of investment properties are recognised 1n the statement of
comprehensive income 1n the period i which they anse, within net gains and losses on assets at fair value through income

Remsurance assets

The Company cedes reinsurance n the normal course of business Rensurance assets, which are measured on a basts
consistent with the related msurance contract habilities, include balances due from both insurance and remnsurance companies
for ceded nsurance habiliies Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed are disclosed separately on the face of the statement
of comprehensive income  The benefits to which the Company 15 entstled under 1ts reinsurance contracts held are recognised
as reinsurance assets These assets consist of short-term balances due from remnsurers (recognised within loans and
recervables), as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims benefits arising under the related
remnsured msurance contracts {recognised within reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities)

Amounts due from reinsurers 1n respect of mvestment contracts are designated as fair value through income as the amount
recoverable relates wholly to investment contract labilities which are recogmsed at fawr value

The change 1n remsurers’ share of liabilities on the face of the statement of comprehensive income represents the movement
during the year 1n all amounts recoverable from remnsurers
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1

(m)

Accounting pohicies (continued)
Denvative financial instruments
Classification

Denvanuve financial instruments, including embedded denvatives, are held for trading, with the exception of denivatives
which are designated and effective hedging instruments, which are held at fair value Denvatives held for tradirg are used for
the purposes of efficient portfolio management or to match contractual liabihties

Recognition

Denvatives held for trading are inually recogmsed at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s entered inte and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value

Measurement

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at imtial recognition 1s the transaction price unless the fair value of that
mstrument 15 evidenced by companson with other observable current marke transactions in the same instrument

Fair values are obtamned from guoted market prices 1n active markets, including recent market transactions For overthe-
counter (“OTC”} derivatives, the fund manager valuation 15 used

Data from a primary source will imitially be used 1in valuing denvatives  However, tolerance checks are also performed
between valuations denived from different sources in order to validate the calculated valuations, detect any potential
discrepancies and, 1f approprate, select a secondary or tertiary price for use 1n the valuation instead  If, as a result of this
process, a value other than one obtained from a prnimary valuation source were to be used to value a denvative, this would be
approved by the Fair Value Committee

For exchange traded contracts, the value 15 based on the quoted bid price at close of business

Changes in the fair value of denvatives are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, through net fair value
gamns and losses on assets at fair value through income

Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain dertvatives as fair value hedges or a hedge of a net investment 1n a foreign operation
Denvatives may only be designated as hedging tnstruments provided certain strict critena are met Atthe inception of a
hedge, 1ts terms must be clearly documented and there must be an expectation that the denvative will be highly effective in
offsetting changes in the fair value of the hedged nsk The hedge documentation must also specify the methodobgy that will
be used to measure effectiveness Changes in the fatr value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded 1n the statement of comprehensive income, through net gains and losses on assets at fair value through yncome,
together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are attributable to the hedged nsk

The effectiveness of the hedging relattonship must be tested throughout its hife A hedge 1s regarded as highly effective ifthe
change n fair value of the hedge mstrument and the hedge 1tem are negatively correlated within a range of 80% to 125%,
either for the period since effectiveness was last tested or for the period since inception Where the hedge s highly effective,
the net impact on the statement of comprehensive income 1s minimised I, at a reporting date, 1t 1s concluded that the hedge
1s no longer highly effective in achieving its objective, the hedge relationship 1s terminated Should this happen, changes 1n
the fair value of the hedged 1tem are no longer recognised n the statement of comprehensive income and the adjustment that
has been made to the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s amortised to the statement of comprehensive income over the
pernod to matunity of the hedged 1tem

Changes n the fair value of denvatives that qualify as a net investment hedge on foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income when the hedge is deemed to be effective  The neffective portion of any net investmenthedge 15
recogmised 1n the income statement immediately

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed 1n note 17

All derivatives are presented as assets when their fair vatue 1s positive and as liabilities when theiwr fair value 1s negative
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Accounting pohicies (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market

Loans and recervables are imitially recogmsed at farr value less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortsed cost, subject to impairment, with the exception of accrued interest and rent receivable These are
accounted for at fair value, reflecting the amounts receivable at the year end  In practice, the carrying value of these balances
equates to the fair value due 1o the shori-term nature of the amounts included within loans and receivables

A charge for impairment 1n respect of loans and recervables would be made 1n the statement of comprehensive income when
there 15 objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to their onginal terms
The impairment charge would be recognised 1n that part of the statement of comprehensive income 1n which the onginal
transaction was reported Receivables ansing from insurance contracts are also classified 1n this category and are reviewed
for impairment as part of the impairment review of loans and receivables Such amounts are reflected through the statement
of comprehensive income, within gross premiums wnitten and claims recoveries from remnsurers  Further information on the
Company’s impairment policy 1s set out at policy (p)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank, short-term highty hquid investments with onginal matunitees of three
months or less (excluding such investments as otherwise meet this definition but which are held for investment purposes
rather than for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments) and bank overdrafts where a legal night of set off
exists

Impairment
Financial assets

The camrying value of all financral assets 1s reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances tndicate tha the
carrying amount may not be recoverable The identification of impairment and the determination of recoverable amounts 15
an inherently uncertain process mvolving various assumptions and factors, including the financial condition of the
counterparty, expected future cash flows, observable fair prices and expected net selling prices

In order to determine whether financial assets are impaired, all financial assets for which the fair value has fallen below cost
pnice either by a sigmficant amount or for a prolonged penod of ume are individually reviewed A distinction 1s made
between negative revaluations due to general market fluctuations and due to 15suerspecific developments The impairment
review focuses on 1ssuer-specific developments regarding financial condrtion and future prospects, taking into account the
intent and ability to hold the securities under the Company’s long term investment strategy

Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject 1o amortisation or depreciation and are tested
annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes n
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts eshmated recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value 1n use For the purpose of

assessing mpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred, the amount of the loss i1s charged to the relevant line 1n
the statement of comprehensive income m the period in which 1t occurs

Impairment process

Ob)jective evidence that an asset or group of assets 1s impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Company about the following events

(1) significant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or debtor,
() a breach of contract,
() the disappearance of an active market for that asset because of financial difficulties, or
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Accounting policies (continued)

(1v) observable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease 1n the estimated future cashflow from a group of
assets since the imitial recognition of those assets, even where the decrease cannot yet be 1dentified with the
individual assets of the Company, including
- adverse changes 1n the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors, or
- national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets i the Company

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for assets that are individually
significant  If the Company determunes that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed asset,
whether sigmficant or not, 1t includes the asset in a group of assets with simular credit nsk charactenistics and collectively
assesses them for impairment Those charactenstics are relevant to the estimation of future cashflows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the issuer’s ability to pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the debt instrument
being evaluated Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss :s or continues to be
recognised are not included 1n a collective assessment of impairment

Taxes

Tax on the profit or loss for the year 15 recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive inome withun taxation and comprises
current and deferred tax

Current tax

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date, together with adjustments to esimates made m prior years

Deferred ncome tax

Deferred income tax 15 provided in full, usmg the hability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts fer financial reporting purposes at the reporting date However, if the
deferred income tax arises from mitial recogmtion of an asset or hability 1n a transaction other than a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or toss, 1t1s not accounted for The amount of
deferred tax provided 15 based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
habilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred income tax assets are only recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 15 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilised

Allocation of tax charge between equity sharehoiders and policyholders

The tax expense in the statement of comprehensive income 1s analysed between policyholder and shareholder tax  This
allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of tax which will be apphed to the returns under current UK tax rules

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there 1s no obligation to transfer cash or other assets Incremental costs directly
attributable to the 1ssue of equity instruments are shown i equity as a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

The Company 1ssues life msurance contracts to protect customers from the consequences of events (such as death, critical
itness or disability) that would affect the ability of the customer or their dependants to mamtain thewr current level of income
and also 1ssues pension and annuity contracts Guaranteed claims paid on occurrence of the specified insured event are either
fixed or hinked 10 the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder
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(t)

Accounting policies (continued)

Insurance contracts or investment contracts with DPF in the Company’s With Profits Fund

Liabilities of the Company’s With Profits Fund, including guarantees and options embedded within products written by that
fund, are accounted for under the “realistic™ methoed 1n accordance with the requirements of FRS 27 However, n contrast (o
the approach used for the FSA’s realistic capital regime, projected transfers out of the fund into other funds of the Company
are not treated as insurance habihties, but are recorded in unallocated surplus Changes in the value of these hiabilities are
recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive income through changes 1n nsurance contract and investment contract with

DPF habilities

Insurance contracts or investment contracts with DPF which are not umit-hnked or in the Company’s With Profits Fund

The hability 15 calculated by estimating the future cash flows over the duraton of in-force policies and discounting them back
to the valuation date, allowing for probabilities of occurrence  The habihity will vary with movements 1n nterest rates and
with the cost of Iife assurance and anmuty benefits where future mortality 1suncertain  Assumptions are made in respect of
all material factors atfecting future cash flows, including future mnterest rates, mortahity and costs Changes n the value of
these liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income through changes in nsurance contract and
mvestment contract with DPF liabilities

Insurance contracts or investment contracts with DPF which are unit-lhinked

Allocated premiums n respect of umit-linked contracts that are either life insurance contracts or investment contracts with
DPF are recogmised as habilittes  These habilities are increased or reduced by the change tn the unit prices and are reduced
by policy administration fees, mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals The mortality chargs deducted in each
period from the policyholders as a group are constdered adequate to cover the expected total death benefit claims 1n excess of
the contract account balances 1n each period and hence no additional hability 1s established for these claims Revenue
consists of fees deducted for mortahity, policy administration and surrender charges Interest or changes in the umit prices
credited to the account balances incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income,
through changes 1n msurance coniract and investment contract with DPF Lhabihittes Benefit claims 1n excess of the account
balances incurred in the penod are charged as expenses 1n the statement of comprehensive income, through gross claims and
benefits paid

Unallocated surplus

Any amounts in the With Profits Fund not yet determined as being due to poheyholders or the equity shareholders and
projected transfers out of the fund to other funds of the Company are recognuised as an unallocated surplus which 1s shown
separately from the other insurance hiabilities

Bonuses
Bonuses reflected in the statement of comprehensive ncome n a given year comprise

e Umt price increases and new reversionary bonuses declared in respect of that year which are provided within the
calculation of insurance contract and investment contract with DPF Liabihines,
* Terminal and interim bonuses paid out to pohcyholders on matunty and included within gross claims and benefits

Receivables and payables

Receivables and payables are recognised when due  These include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance
contract holders

Provisions for other habilities and charges

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when 1t
15 probable that the ebligation will result in an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made  If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropiiate, the
risks specific to the liabihity

The Company recogrises provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be dertved from contracts are less
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obhgations under the contracts
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Accounting policies {continued)
Subordinated debt

Subordinated debt comprnises dated and undated loan capital and is carried at amortised cost adyusted for hedged interest rate
nisk Interest payable 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income, through finance costs

The subordinated guaranteed bonds are classified as a habihity on the basis of the exastence of a capital disqualification event
constdered to be a genuine settlement provision in the context of current uncertainty surounding the direction of future
regulatory rule developments

Investment contracts without DPF

The Company 1ssues investment contracts without fixed terms (unit-linked) In accordance with industry practice, these
contracts are accounted for as financial lhabilities, the values of which are contractually linked to the fair values of financial
assets within the Company’s umtised mvestment funds The value of the unitlinked financial iabihities 1s determined using
current unt prices multiphied by the number of units attributed to the policyhoelders at the reporting date The value of the
lrabihities 15 never less than the amount payable on surrender, discounted for the required nottce period where applicable

The best evidence of the fair value of these financial lrabihities at imtial recognition 1s the transaction price unless the fair
value of that instrument 15 evidenced by companison with other observable market transactions 1n the same instrument or
based on a valuation technique whose vanables include only data from observable markets Any profit ansing on 1mtial
measurement of these mvestment contracts 15 deferred as a hability for the future investment management services that the
Company will render 10 each policyholder The deferred income balance 1s recogmised over the estimated hives of the
contracts, 1n line with the provision of investment management services unless there 1s evidence to support an alternative
recognition basis

The element of premums and claims 1n respect of investment contracts without DPF which 1s invested or withdrawn on
behalf of the policyholder 1s excluded from the statement of comprehensive imcome, with all movements in the pohicyholder
liabihity and related assets being recorded 1n the balance sheet, within investment contract llabilittes  Changes in the value of
the mvestment contract habilities relating to the changes 1n the value of backing assets are recogmised through the statement
of comprehensive income, within change m investment contract habilities

Liabihity adequacy test

At each reporting date, hability adeguacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance and investment contract
with DPF habilities net of related deferred costs and acquired value of in-force business In performuing these tests, current
best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims handling and policy adminstration expenses, as well as investment
income from assets backing such habilities, are used Any deficiency 1s immediately charged to the statement of
comprehensive imncome, imitially by writing off the relevant assets and subsequently by establishing aprovision for losses
arising from the Liability adequacy tests

Other financial habibities

Other financial habilities are imitially recogmsed at fair value less directly attnbutable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost In practice, the carrying value of these balances equates to the fair value due to the short-term
nature of the amounts included within other financial habthties

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mmitially at fair value, being the 1ssue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income through finance costs over the peried of the borrowings using
the effective interest rate apphcable to the mstrument In practice, due to the nature of these balances, being bank overdrafts,
the carrying value equates to the far value of these habilities as the borrowings are repayable on demand

Foreign currency translation

Each of the Company's operatiens measures items included 1n the financial statements vsing the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which it operates (the *functional currency') The functional curency of the majonty of the
Company's operations 1s pounds sterhing The financial statements are presented 1n pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest
milhion (“£m”™), which 1s the Company’s presentational currency
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(aa)

Accounting pohicies (continued)

Assets and Liabihties denominated 10 foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the
reporting date Revenue transactions and those relating to the acquisition and realisation of investments have been translated
at average rates of exchange (unless this 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates 1n which case revenue transactions are translated at the dates of the transactions) Exchange differences
are dealt with in that part of the statement of comprehensive income 1 which the underlying transaction 1s reported, with the
exception of differences arising from hedges of net investments in foreign operations, which are recogmsed 1n other
comprehensive income

The results and financial position of the Company's foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the
presentational currency are translated into the presentational currency as follows The assets and habilities of foreign
operations are translated mito sterhing at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The mcome and expenses of
foreign operations are translated into sterhing at average exchange rates, unless these do not approximate to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions 1n which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of a foreign operations are recognised 1n other
comprehensive income

Collateral

The Company receives or pledges collateral in the form of cash or secunites in respect of derivative transactions 1t
undertakes Denvative collateral pledged or received 15 recognsed as a hiability or asset on the balance sheet Denvative
collateral that has been received 1n the form of cash 1s invested in a cash or cash equivalent investrment vehicle which
provides immediate iqudity Income from collateral 1s used to pay the interest obligations to the counterparty

The Company also recerves collateral in the form of securities in respect of stock lending agreements Collateral received
aganst stock lent 1s not recorded on the hatance sheet but 1s appropniately segregated from the assets of the Company

Critical accounting estimates and judgments i applying accounting policies

The Company’s management makes estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and habihities
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical expenience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised 1n the period 1n which the estimate 1s revised and in any future periods affected

(a) Insurance contract and imvestment contract with DPF habilities

The estimation of the ultimate habihty ansing from insurance contracts which are not unitlinked 1s the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate

In accordance with FRS 27, the ltabilities of the Company’s With Profits Fund are calculated using a stochastic simulation
model which values habilities on a basis consistent with tradable market option contracts {a “market-consistent” basis) The
habilities are sensitive to both investment market conditions and changes to a number of non-economic assumptions, such as
the level of take-up of options mherent in the contracts, mortality rates and lapses prior io dates at which a guarantee would

apply

For insurance contracts outside the With Profits Fund, the habilities are calculated using a projection of future cash flows
after making prudent assumptions about matters such as investment return, expenses, credit default and mortality Discount
rates used to value the liabihtics are set with reference to the nsk adjusted yields on the urderlying assets The most critical
non-economic assumptions are mortahty rates in respect of annuity business written and levels of future expenses Such
assumpttons are based on recent actual expenence, supplemented by industry information where appropriate

At each reporting date, the estimates and assumptions referred to above are reassessed for adequacy and changes will be
reflected 1n adjustments to the habihity Further information on these balances 1s given m note 31

Sensiivities regarding changes to key assumptions in calculating insurance contract hiabilities are given 1n note 31

(b} Intangible assets

Acqured value of in-force business

Followmg the acquisiion of Clenical Medical and General Life Assurance Society in 1996, the Company holds an asset
representing the acquired VIF The asset 1s calculated by projecting the future surpluses and other cash flows attributable to

the Company arising from business written, excluding the value of future investment nsk margins, discounted at an
appropnate rate The key assumptions used n esumating future surpluses relate to lapse rates and expenses
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2

Critical accounfing estimates and judgments in applying accounting pohictes (continued)

The assumptions are determined on a best-estimate basis and, as above, are based on recent actual experience and industry
information where appropnate  Amortisation of this balance and related tax 1s carried out on a best estimate basis over the
estimated hife of the contracts The recognised charge for the year 1s recogmsed through the income statement, within
operating expenses The carrying value of this asset 1s tested for impairment at each reporting date  Further information on
this asset 1s given 10 note 11

{c) Deferred costs

For insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF (excluding those assessed on a ‘realistic basis™ in accordance with
FRS 27), acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial penod but which relate to subsequent financ:al periods are
deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins  All other costs are recognised as expenses
when incurred  The calculation of the deferred acquisition cost asset and its pattern of amortisation requires estimation of
both the expected pattern of receipt of future revenue margins and the period that the business 1s expected to remain in force
Further information on this asset 1s given 1n note 12

The recognition of costs 1n respect of investment contracts without DPF 15 governed by IAS 18 “Revenue™ Under this
standard, directly attnbutable and incremental costs to securing new business are capitahised and are then subsequently
amortised over the period of the provision of the investment management £rvices Estimation 1s required of the period that
the business 1s expected to remain in force and prudent assumptions are required for contracts which do not have a fixed
maturity date

(d) Taxation

The Company recognises current and deferred tax assets in hne with IAS 12 “Income Taxes™ In recogmsing these assets,
management takes into account the likely impact of tax 1ssues that are subject to ongoing discussion with HM Revenue and
Customs and other tax authorities With regard to the Company’s deferred tax assets, a sigmificant feature 1s the management
Judgment applied 1n determuning the timing, sensitivities and probability of them reversing  This judgment 1s based on tax
forecasts reflecting new business assumptions, sensttivities and proposed management actions  Further information in
relation to the Company's current and deferred tax assets 1s set out at notes 10 and 13

Fee and commisston mncome

2009 2008
£m £m
Fee income from reinsured business 758 777
Change 1n deferred income 18 07
Total 776 78 4
Investment mmcome
2009 2008
£m £m
Investments at fair value through imcome
Interest income on investments 1790 1930
Dividend income 2478 4073
Interest receivable on swap 200 285
Dividend income from subsidiary undertakings 345 -
Financial instruments at amortised cost
Interest income on deposits 43 56
Interest income from group undertakings 21 125
Dividend income from subsidhary undertakings - 600
Interest income from loans to subsidiary undertakings 09 49
Gain on disposal of property - 155
Rental income on investment properties 582 1133
Foreign currency translation differences 114 1 (118 3)
Other 22 242
Total 703 1 746 5
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5 Net realised gains/{(losses) on assets and habilities at fawr value through income
2009 2008
£m £m
Dertvative financial instruments at fasr value through income (86 9) 3304
Investments at fair value through income
Equity securities 576 3223
Debt securities 315 305
Investment properties at fair value through income 184 94 8
Foreign exchange (75) 72
Total 131 7852
6 Net far value gains/(losses) on assets and habilities at fair value through mncome
2009 2008
£m £m
Denvative financial instruments at fair value through income (500 6) 1107
Investments at fair value through income
Equity secunties 1,067 4 (2,912 Q)
Debt secunties (259 2) 204 9
Investment propertics at fair value through income (99 3) (661 5)
Gains n holdings of subsidianes at fair value 311 215 8
Foreign exchange (283 7) 1,023 0
Fair value gain on denvative hedging instrument 122 410
Fair vatue {loss) on hedged loan (19 {41 2)
Total (44 0) (2,023 3}
7 Operating expenses
2009 2008
£m £m
Acquisiion and origination costs in respect of insurance and investment 119 8 895
contracts
Expenses for admmistration 267 1 3119
3869 401 4
Change 1n deferred costs 19 (611)
Amortisation and impairment of acquired VIF 48 4 274
Amortisation of software development costs 11 09
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries 1230 330
Total 5613 401 6

The admumistration of the Company 1s undertaken by HBOS ple A recharge 15 levied from this undertaking to the Company

n respect of those costs incurred on behalf of the Company

The Company had no direct employees during the year (2008 ml) The emplovee costs, including pension costs and share-

based payment costs, are included in the recharge from HBOS plc noted above

8 Auditors’ remuneration

2009 2008

£m £m

Fees payable for the audit of the statutory accounts for the Company 06 06

Fees payable for the audit of Lloyds Banking Group plc reporting returns for the Company 05 -

Fees payabte for the audit of HBOS plc reporting returns for the Company - 02

Fees payable for services provided pursuant to legislation 01 01

Total 12 09
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9 Finance costs
2009 2008
£m £m
Interest on borrowings 89 33
Interest payable on swap 142 369
Interest on subordinated debt 556 625
Other interest 17 04
Total 804 1031
10 Taxation
(a) Analysis of tax credit
2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax:
UK corporation tax 78 (50 3)
Overseas tax 50 05
Adjustment in respect of prior years (20) 140 6
Total current tax 08 90 6
Deferred tax:
Ongnation of temporary differences 894 206 3
Adjustment 1n respect of pnor years (53 6) (08
Total deferred tax 358 2055
Total mcome tax credit 366 2961

The policyholder tax benefit or expense 1s included in income tax expense Policyholder tax 1s a credit of £30 8m (2008

credit of £172 8m}, mcluding a prior year tax charge of £3 8m (2008 charge of £3 8m}

{(b) Reconcihation of tax credit

2009 2008
£m £m
Loss before tax (324 1) (34 2}
Tax at 28% (2008 18 5%) 90 7 97
Effects of
Tax exempt income - i72
Dnsallowable expenses (307) -
Policyholder tax 297 123 6
Adjustment to 1ax charge 1n respect of prior years (51 8) 142 6
Overseas tax 14 24
Other 27 06
Total 366 296 1

The Finance Act 2007 reduced the rate of corperation tax from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008 The impact of
this reduction n tax rate, which resulted in a weighted average rate of 28 5% being apphed to the profit for the prior year, 13

reflected n the above table

11. Intangible assets

2009 2008

£m £m

Acquired VIF () 217 3 265 7
Software development costs (b) 38 51
Total 2211 2708
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11 Intangible assets (continued)
(2) Acquired VIF
2009 2008
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 6514 651 4
Accumulated amortisation and imparrment
At 1 January 3857 3583
Amortisation during the year 230 274
Impairment 254 -
At 31 December 434 1 3857
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2173 2657
Of the above total, £201 2Zm (2008 £242 7m) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reportng date
(b) Software development costs
2009 2008
£m £fm
Cost
At 1 January 60 09
Additons 01 51
At 31 December 61 60
Accumulated amorusation
At 1 January 09 -
Amortisation charge for the year 11 05
At 31 December 20 09
Foreign exchange
At 1 January - -
Incurred in the year 03 -
At 31 December 03 -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 38 51
Of the above total, £2 6m (2008 £4 2m) (s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reperting date
12. Deferred costs
2009 2008
£m £m
Deferred acquisition costs (a) 2361 2265
Deferred origination costs (b) 2388 2514
Total 4749 4779
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12 Deferred costs {continued)
(a) Deferred acquisition costs
2009 008
£m £m
At 1 January 226 5 100 3
Amounts mcurred during the period 699 523
Amortisation during the period (60 3) (50 4)
Transfers (note 12 (b)) - 124 3
At 31 December 2361 226 5

During the year to 31 December 2008, changes were made to certain investment bonds with additional bfe cover being
added In accordance with IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts’, this resulted in these products transfernng from being accounted for
as investment contracts without DPF to insurance contracts, which resulted in a £124 3m 1ncrease 1n deferred acquisition

costs, with a corresponding reduction 1n deferred origination costs

Of the above total, £197 2m (2008 £190 2m}) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year afier the reporting date

(b} Deferred origination costs

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January 2514 3128

Amounts incurred during the penod 178 116 8

Amortisation during the peniod (29 4) 577

Transfers (note 12 {a)) - (124 3)

Foreign exchange (10) 38

At 31 December 238 8 2514
Of the above total, £199 4m (2008 £211 2m) i1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

13 Tax assets and habilities

2009 2008

£m £m

Current tax receivables 290 78

Deferred tax assets 730 670

Total tax assets 102 0 74 8

Current tax payables 385 -

Deferred tax habihties 2207 2505

Total tax habilities 2592 2505

Deferred tax assets include £73 Om (2008 £67 Om) that 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

Deferred tax liabihites nclude £220 7m (2008 £250 5m) that 1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting

date
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13

14,

Tax assets and habilities (continued)

Recognised deferred tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets

agamst current tax liabihities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authonty The amounts are as

follows

2009 2008

£m £m

Deferred tax assets comprise’
Unrealised losses on mvestment assets 420 473
Expenses deductible in future peniods 310 190
Other - 07
Total deferred tax assets 730 670
Deferred tax habihties comprise
Deferred costs 126 8 1292
Other insurance related 1tems 362 105
Deferred tax on acquired VIF 577 110 8
Total deferred tax habilities 2207 2505
Net deferred tax habilities 147 7 183 5

Included 1n the deferred tax balance 1s an asset of £31 Om (2008 £19 Om) n respect of expenses incurred hy the Company
that will be deductible 1n future periods Projections indicate that these expenses will be offset against future income and

gains

The tax credit in the income statement relating to cach of the above items 15 as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Unrealised gains on investment assets {53 2352
Expenses deductible in future periods 120 (0 5)
Other deferred tax assets 07 -
Deferred costs 24 (182)
Other mnsurance 1tems (257 (16 2)
Accelerated capital allowances - 03
Acquired value in force 531 55
Total deferred tax credat 358 2055
Deferred tax assets have not been recogmised in respect of unreheved capatal losses of £3 9m (2008 £3 9m), as there s
sufficient certainty as to the availlabihty of future profits
Investment 1n subsidiaries
2009 2008
£m £m
At | January 1,114 7 9359
Movements i holdings of subsidiaries at fair value 262 2118
Disposals of holdings n subsidiaries (54 5) -
Impairment of heldings in subsidiaries (123 0y (33 0)
At 31 December 963 4 1,114 7
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14

15

16.

Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Investments 1n subsidianes held at cost are generally recoverable more than one year after the reporting date

The following are particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

Country of Nature
Class of Share or Percentage Registration or of
Name Stock held Incorporation Business
Clerical Medical Managed Funds Ordinary 100 0 England and Wales Life Insurance
Limited
Hahfax Life Limited Ordimnary 100 0 England and Wales Life Insurance
Clerical Medical Forestry Limited Ordmary 100 0 England and Wales Life Insurance
CM Venture Investments Limited Ordinary 100 0 Isle of Man Invesiments
Nen-Sterling Property Fund Ordinary 1000 Luxembourg Property
Investments

The subsidiary Lands Improvement Holdings Limited was sold on 22 November 2009, resulting in a pre-tax profit on

disposal of £24 Tm

The ability of regulated entities to pay cash dividends to the Company or repay loans or advances 1s restnicted by regulatory
solvency requirements The ability of non-regulated entities to pay cash dividends to the Company or repay loans or
advances 1s restricted by Companies Act distributable reserves requirements

Property

2009 2008

£m £m

Cost
At 1 January 774 161 4
Additiens - 204
Disposals - (332)
Transfer to investment properties (68 6) (312)
At 31 December 88 774
Accumulated deprecration
At 1 January - -
Impairment charge for the year 28 -
At 31 December 28 -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 60 774
The above assets are generally recoverable more than one year after the reporting date
Investment properties

2009 2008

£m £m

At 1 January 1,2143 1,963 5
Additions - new properties - 328
Additions — subsequent expenditure on existing properties 707 311
Disposals {308 9) (202 8)
Transfer from property 686 512
Net loss from change in fair values (92 3) (661 5)
At 31 December 945 4 1,214 3
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16.

17

Investment properties (continued)

The rental income ansing frem investment properttes during the year amounted to £98 3m (2008 £113 4m), which 1s
included in investment income  Dhrect operating expenses (included within operating expenses) arising in respect of such
mvestment properties duning the year amounted to £33 Om (2008 £13 Om)

Expenditure on wnvestment properties which did not generate rental income was £49 6m (2008 £21 7m)

The investment properties are independently valued by CBRE, DTZ and Jones Lang LaSalle on at least a quarterly basis for
the purpose of determiming the open market value of the properties

The carrying value of properttes under development 15 £77 4m (2008 £49 4m) The carrying value of land held for
development purposes that has not yet been developed 1s £10 5m (2008 £19 2m)

Investment properties are generally recoverable more than one year afier the reperting date

Derivative financial instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into swap contracts, option contracts, 1ndex futures contracts and
forward foreign exchange contracts  All such contracts are undertaken ather for efficient portfolic management purposes
or for the purpose of matching contractual liabilities

Swap contracts include interest and inflation rate swaps An interest or inflation rate swap 1s an agreement between two
parties to exchange fixed and vanable rate mterest payments, based upon interest or inflation rates defined in the contract,
without the exchange of the underlying principal amount

Option contracts include index and single equuty options  Such options represent a contract sold by one party to another
party offering the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a financial asset at an agreed price on a specified future date or
within a specified penod of hme

Index futures contracis are used to hedge the investment portfolio against adverse movements 1n underlying markets or
effecting pohicy switches between markets without the need to trade the underlying secunties  Futures may also be used for
the purposes of efficient portfolio management provided that their substance would otherwise be permitted as a senies of
direct transactions

Forward foreign exchange contracts are an agreement to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate

Details regarding derivative financial instruments are given 1n the following tables

2009 2008
Contract Fair value Fawrvalue  Contract Fair value Fair value
Amount assets habihties Amount assets habilities
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Denvauve financial instruments held for
trading
Swap contracts 1,739 7 160 793 1,391 7 602 330
Option contracts 3,1104 406 7 17 1,981 0 4890 24
Index futures contracts 808 8 13 [66 3,040 7 520 66 1
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 44G 8 40 34 6201 530 296
Denivative financial instruments
designated as fair value hedges 3449 133 - 7163 81 -
Denvative financial instruments
designated as net investment hedge 901 - 18 - - -
Total 6,5347 5313 1028 7,749 8 662 3 1311

Derivative financial instrument assets tnclude £262 3m (2008 £37 Om) that 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after
the reporting date

None of the denivative financial instrument habilities are expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date (2008
£7 1m)
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17.

18

19.

Bervative financial instruments {(continued)

The fair value hedge included in the above tables 15 an nterest rate swap 1n respect of the interest payments relating to the
subordinated debt 1ssued by the Company This mstrument forms part of ahedge relationship with the subordinated debt
1ssued

The net investment hedge included 1n the table above 1s held in respect of the European branch of the Company The hedge
has been put 1n place to offset the currency exposure relating to the branch with changes in the fair value of the derivative
bewng taken directly to equity

The amount of £387 5m (2008 £147 4m) was accepted by the Company 1n assets that it 1s permutted to sell or repledge in the

absence of default of the owner of the collateral Mo collateral was sold or repledged during the year or 1n the pnior year The
Company has an obligation to return these assets to the pledgor

Loans and recervables

2009 2008
£ m £m
Insurance business

Amounts receivable mn respect of direct insurance business 462 49

Other loans and receivables
Accrued interest and rent 116 156
Amounts due from related parties 3446 5126
Others 136 3 1530
Total 5387 636 1

Of the above total, £257 ém (2008 £188 8m ) 1s expected to be recovered more than one year after the reporting date

Of the above balances, £257 6m (2008 £188 8m) are interest bearing Interest on these balances 1s shown 1n other investment
income 1n note 4

There 15 no stgnificant concentration of credit risk with respect to loans and receivables Further information in respect of
credit nisk 1s given tn note 32

Investments at fair value through income

2009 2008
£m £fm
At fair value

Shares and other vaniable yield securities
Listed 2,364 5 2,318 8
Unlisted 8,149 0 8,019 7
10,513 5 10,338 5
Debt and other fixed/variable income securities 6,0805 4,740 7
Total investments at fair value 16,594 0 15,079 2

Of the total debt secunities above, £3,611 1m (2008 £2,492 7m) are listed govenment bonds

Of the debt secunties, £4,348 Sm (2008 £5,612 Om) 15 expected 1o be recovered more than one year after the reporting date Due
to the nature of equity securities and investments m pooled investment funds, there s no fixed term associated with these
secunties
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20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for use 1n the statement of cash flows include the following
2009 2008
£m £m
Cash at bank 114 ¢ 2659
Short term deposits 2426 23 4
3566 2893
Bank overdraft (note 28) (16 0) (169 0)
Total 3406 1203
Cash and cash equivalents 1n the above 1able contains amounts of £221 7m (2008 £94 0m) which are held entirely within the
long-term insurance funds of the Company These balances are not therefore readily available for use by the Company
21, Share capital and share premum
2009 2008
£m £m
Authornised share capital
150,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 1500 1500
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital:
70,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 700 700
In December 2001, the Company 1ssued 159,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each at a premum of 0 63 pence, giving nise toa
share premium account of £1 Om All shares are fully paid, there are no nights, preferences or restrictions attached to the
shares
There have been no changes to share capital duning the year ended 31 December 2009  On 1 QOctober 2008, the directors
passed a special resolution, supported by a solvency statement under Section 641 of the Compames Act 2006, to reduce the
Company's authonsed share capital from 1,709,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each to 150,000,000 shares of £1 each The
resolution, together with the solvency statement, was registered by Companies House on 9 October 2008 and therefore the
reduction 1n share capital became effective as of that date
22 Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilities

An znalysis of the change in insurance contract and investment contract with DPF Liabihities and reinsurers’ share of nsurance
contract and investment contract with DPF habilities ts as follows

2009 2008

Gross  Remsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 16,908 0 (2,270 4) 14,637 6 15,2155 (2,294 2) 12,9213
New business 2992 (142 7) 156 5 3071 (113 2) 1939
Change 1n existing business (1,063 B8) (02) (1,0640) (1,2655) 133 4 (1,132 1)
Transfer in - - - 26028 - 2,602 8
Recapture of reinsurance - 2,0402 2,040 2 - - -
Assumption changes 196 0 (148 4) 47 6 481 36 517
At 31 December 16,339 4 (5215) 15817 9 16,908 0 (2,270 4) 14637 6

As the Company 1s wholly owned by an entity which prepares group financial statements, the Company has taken advantage
of the provisions contained 1n FRS 27 and has not presented a capital position statement and supporting disclosures
Information m which the Company 1s inctuded 1s given in the financial statements of Lloyds Banking Group plc

On 31 December 2009, the Company recaptured its portfoho of annuity business from its subsidiary Clerical Medical
Managed Funds Limited This resulted in the transfer in of habilittes of £2,040 2m shown 1n the above table, with a
corresponding increase in premiums of £1,928 Om 1n respect of the recapiure, resulting mn a net profit impact of £(112 2m)

The transfer in during 2008 relates to products transferred from being accounted as mmvestment contracts to insurance
contracts due to additional hife cover being added to certain mvestment bonds

An analysis of the contractual and expected matunties of msurance contract and mvestment contract with DPF habiliues 1s given

in note 32
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23.

24.

25.

Unallocated surplus

An analysis of the change in unallocated surplus 1s as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
At 1 Januwary 469 2 1,497 4
Change recognised through the statement of comprehensive income 2012 (1,028 2)
At 31 December 670 4 4692
Due to nature of this balance, no recovery 1s expected in the next 12 months
Accruals and deferred income
2009 2008
£m £m
Accrued expenses 93 82
Deferred income i53 183
Deferred revenue on investment property 14 2 201
Total 393 46 6

Of the above total, £12 9m (2008 £15 3m) 1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date

Subordinated debt

The Company has 1ssued debt to Cierical Medical Finance ple, a fellow group undertaking, who in tumn 1ssued debt
externally The bonds are guaranteed on a subordinated basis by the Company, after the claims of the Company’s semior
creditors mncluding all policyholders  The proceeds were loaned to the Company on similar interest, repayment and subordmation
terms as those apphcable to the external Bonds Details of the bonds 1ssued are as follows

In June 2005 Clencal Medical Finance ple 1ssued €750m of 4 25% undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds (current sterling
value still in 15sue £343 3m) Redemption of the bonds 1s at the option of Clerical Medical Finance ple and 1s generatly not
allowable prier to 27 June 2015, after which time if the bond has not been redeemed floating rate interest 1s payable The interest
rate charged to the Company by Clerical Medical Finance plcis 4 27%

In July 2001 Clerical Medicat Finance plc 1ssued €400m of 6 45% dated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds maturing on 5 July
2023 (current sterling value sull in 1ssue £192 5m) Redemption of the bonds 15 at the option of Clenical Medical Finance plc and
1s generally not allowable prior to July 2013, after which time 1if the bond has not been redeemed floating rate interest 1s payable
The interest rate charged to the Company by Clerical Medical Finance plc1s 5 56%

Previously Clerical Medical Finance plc 1ssued £200 Om of 7 38% undated Subordinated Guaranteed Bonds (current sterling
value still 1n 1ssue £48 Om), the redemption of which 1s at the option of Clencal Medical Finance plc and 1s generally not
allowable prior to 5 November 2019 The first tranche of £150 Om was 1ssued in November 1999 and the remainder in December
2000 The mterest rate charged to the Company by Clerical Medical Finance plc for the first tranche 15 7 61% and 7 30% for the
second tranche

On 27" July 2009 Clenical Medical Finance Ltd redeemed and cancelled its subordinated debt as follows

Tranche Orniginal i1ssue Amount redeemed Outstanding at 31 December

2009
4 25%, 1ssued June 2005 €750m €362m €388m
6 45%, 1ssued July 2001 €400m €131m €219m
7 38%, 1ssued Nov 2009 / Dec £200m £149m €51m
2000

The loan between Clencal Medical Finance Ltd and the Company was redeemed at carrying value in the same ratio to that of the
external redemption, resulting 1n no gain or loss to the Company
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25  Suobordinated debt {continued)
The fair value together with the carrying amount shown 1n the balance sheet 15 as follows
2009 2008
£m £m £m £ m
Carrying value  Fawr value  Carrying value  Fatr value
Subordmated debt 5751 454 2 1,282 0 7991
Accrued interest on subordimated debt 259 - 375 -
Farr value hedge adjustment 87 - 32 -
Total 609 7 454 2 1,316 3 799 1

26

27,

The fair value of the subordinated guaranteed bonds s their open market value and has been calculated using published bid prices
at the reporting date  The carrying value 15 calculated on an effective interest rate basis, adjusted for foreign exchange
movements, amortised 1ssue costs and hedged mterest rate risk  The 2009 carrying value includes a foreign exchange gain of

£89 6m (2008 loss of 260 4m)

An mnterest rate swap has been put in place m respect of the €750m tranche of the subordinated debt, which 1s accounted for

using hedge accounting, as set out in note 1 (m)

Investment contract without DPF habilities

An analysis of the change 1n net investment contract without DPF habilities 1s as follows

2009 2008
Gross  Remsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net
£m £m £m £m £m £ m
At 1 January 7,761 0 (7,456 5) 304 5 12,4243 (8,8051) 3,6192
New business 466 4 (466 3) 01 418 1 (285 1) 1330
Change 1n existing business 437 5 (550 8) (933) (2,4384) 1,633 7 (804 7)
Transfer out (Note 22) - - - (2,643 0) - (2643 0)
At 31 December 8,684 9 (8,473 6) 2113 7,761 0 (7.456 5) 304 5
An analysis of the contractual and expected maturities of investment contract without DPF habilities 1s given i note 32
Under the fair value methodology, all investment contract without DPF Liabilities are categonsed as Level 2
Other financial habilhities
2009 2008
£m £m
Insurance business
Amounts payable in respect of direct insurance business 778 846
Other habilities
Due to related parties 366 8 790
Due to brokers 31 45
Trade payables 03 01
Social security and other taxes 24 275
Repurchase creditor 5364 3492
Collateral hahlity 3879 134 1
Other 91 395
Total 1,383 8 7185

Of the above total, £m] (2008 £mf) 1s expected to be settled more than one year after the reporting date
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28. Borrowings
2009 2008
£m £m
Bank overdrafts 16 0 169 0
Total 16 0 169 0

The fair value of the balances set out above 15 not materially different to the carrying value due to the short-term nature of

these balances

29. Decrease in operating assets and habilities

2009 2008
£m £m
{Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Investment propertics 2689 7492
Investment in subsidiaries held 1n the long term 1insurance funds of the 418 (178 8)
Company
Property transferred to investment properties 68 6 512
Remnsurers' share of insurance contract and investment contract with DPF 1,748 9 238
Liabilimes
Prepayments and accrued income 06 149
Financial assels
Investments (1,514 8) 2,1932
Loans and receivables including insurance receivables 147 4 (592)
Rensurers' share of mvestment contract without DPF habilities (1,009 6) 1,3389
Denvative financial mstruments 1310 (560 8)
Net (increase)/decrease tn operating assets (117 2) 3,572.4
Increase/(decrease) in operating habhties:
Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilitics (568 6) 1,692 5
Unallocated surplus within insurance business 2012 (1,028 2)
Financial liabilities
Subordinated debt (706 6) 2572
Investment contract without DPF habihities 916 4 (4,653 6)
Derrvative financial instruments (28 3) 932
Other financial habilities 6653 448 3
Provision for other lrlabilities and charges 0 6) 03
Accruals and deferred income (73) @47
Net increase/{(decrease) in operating habilities 471.5 (3,195.0)
Net decrease in operating assets and llabilittes 354.3 377 4
30. Dwidends pad
2009 2008
£m £m
Total dividends paid on equity shares - 6100

No dividend was paid in 2009, the dividend patd m 2008 amounted to 871 4 pence per share
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31

Insurance contract and mvestment contract with DPF habihties - assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivities

Policyholder hiabilities can be analysed into With-Profits Fund habihties and Non-Profit Fund habilihes In accordance with
FRS 27, the liabihties of the With Profit Fund are accounted for using the “realistic” capital regime of the FSA (“realisuc™
habilities) All Non-Profit habilities are accounted for using a tradinonal prospective actuanial discounted cash flow
methodology

(k) Processes used to determine Key assumptions in respect of insurance and investment contracts

(a) With-Profits Fund - Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF calculated on a “realistic” basis

The Company’s With-Profits Fund contams both insurance and participating investment contracts The main components of the
realistic habihities are

with-profits benefit reserves, 1 e the total asset shares for with-profits policies,
the costs of options and guarantees,

deductions levied aganst asset shares, and

the impact of smoothing policy

The realistic assessment 1s carried out using a stochastic sumulation model which values liabilities on a market consistent basis
The calculation of realistic habihties uses best estimate assumptions of e g mortality, persistency and expenses

The processes for determining the key assumptions are set out below, and remain unchanged from the pnor year

¢  Investment returns and discount rates

A stochastic economic scenano generator, which uses recogmsed asset models, provides future asset retumns and yield
scenarios, these determine 1nvestment returns for each scenano  The economic scenano generator 1s calibrated to
observable yield curves and option prices where possible Nominal interest rates are modelled using a standard 1nterest
rate model, calibrated to nsk-free yields The nsk-free yield 1s defined as the spot yields derived from the relevant
government yield curve The volatibty of future equity retumns in excess of nominal interest rates has been calibrated to
10 year at-the-money options on the relevant equity indices, with volatihty assumed to vary with both the term and the
price of the option For property, no observable prices exist and so volatility has been derived from the volatility of a
portfolio of equity and zero coupon bonds The labilities are valued by discounting projected future cashflows using the
nsk free yield

* Investment volatihty
Investment volaulity 1s denved from imphed volaolity of denivatives where pessible, or histortcal observed volatility where
1115 not possible to observe meaningful prices

= Mortality

The mortality assumptions, including allowances for improvements n longevity for annuitants, are based on recent actual
expenence where this 1s significant and relevant industry data otherwise

e Persistency

Persistency 1s a function of both the rate of pohicy termination, the rate at which policyholders switch from with-profits and
the rate at which pohcyholders stop paying tegular premmums The assumed levels of these rates are based on a combination
of historical expenence and management’s views on future expenence taking into consideration potential changes that may
result from guarantees and options becormng more valuable under adverse market conditions

e Mamtenance expenses

Allowance 15 made for the charges applied to the With-Profits Fund mncluding those govermned by the Scheme of Transfer

e  Guaranteed annuity take-up rates

Certain pension contracts contain guaranteed annuity options that allow the policyholder to take an annuity benefit on
retirement at annuity rates that were guaranteed at the outset of the contract For contracts that contain such options key
assumptions n determining the cost of the options are economic conditiens in which the option has value, mortakity rates
and take up rates of the options
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3

Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilities — assumptions, changes i assumptions and sensitivities
(continued)

{b)} Non-Profit Funds - Insurance contracts and investment contracts wih DPF

The habilities of the Company are determined on the basis of recognised actuanal metheds and consistently with the approach to
be used for the FSA returns The methods used nvolve esumating future policy cashflows over the duration of the in-force book
of pohicies, and discounung these cashflows back to the valuation date allowing for probabilities of occurrence

The liabilities will vary with movements in iterest rates (this applies in particular to the cost of guaranteed benefits payable in the
future) and with movements 1n the cost of life assurance and annuity benefits for which future monality 1s uncertain

Assumptions are made 1n respect of all matenal factors affecting future cashflows, including future 1nterest rates, mortality and
costs Generally, assumptions used to value the habiliies contain a margin for adverse deviation and are determined as
required by FSA rules This margin for adverse deviation 15 based on management’s judgment and reflects management’s
views on the inherent level of uncertainty The assumptions to which the habilities are most sensitive are the mterest rates
used to discount the cashflows and the mortality assumptions, particularly those for annuitants The key assumptions vsed 1n
the measurement of the Non-Profit fund liabilites are

Interest rates

The rates used are derived consistently with the approach 1o be used for the FSA returns These limit the rates of interest
that can be used by reference to a number of factors including the dividend and eamings yields on equities, rental
income, and redemption ytelds on fixed interest assets at the valuation date Margins for risk are allowed for in the
assumed nterest rates These are denived from the himits contamed in the FSA Rules, including reductions made to the
available ytelds to allow for default risk based wpon the credit rating of each stock, and an overriding restricion which
hmts the yield from investments in property by reference to the yield from appropnate longterm gilts

*  Mortahty and morbidity

The mortahty and morbidity assumptions, mcluding allowances for improvements in longevity for annuitants, are set with
regard to the Company's actual experience where this provides a rehable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and
includes a margin for adverse deviation

+  Maintenance expenses

Allowance 15 explicitly made for future policy costs Expense loadings are determined by reference to an internal analysis
of current and expected future expense levels, plus a margin for adverse deviations Exphcit allowance 1s made for future
expense inflation from the valuation date No allowance 1s made for any expected reductions in expense levels that have
not occurred at the valuation date

e Persistency rates

Prudent lapse rate assumptions have been used for term assurance business Whether a lapse rate 1s prudent broadly
depends on whether the pelicy 15 negative or positive at any point 1n 1ts life, thus for each product a high lapse rate 15
assumed where the projected hability 1s negative or a low lapse rate 13 assumed at points where the projected liabihty 1s
positive

(2) Key assumptions
(a) With-Profits Fund

Assumptions are gtven for the “realistic” valuation Inaddition, halities in respect of NonrProfit policies in the Wath-
Profits Fund were also accounted for on the tradihonal regulatory assessment

(1) Investment returns and discount rates

In the “realistic” valuation of habilities in calibrating the economic scenano generator, the nsk-free yields curve 1s defined as
the yields curve for relevant government bonds

Class of business 2009 Interest Rate (Net) 2008 Interest Rate (Net)
Annuities in Payment 2 59% 26%
Deferred Annuities 2 59% 2 6%
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3

Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilities — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivities

{continued)

() Investment volatility (reabistic liabilities only)

The calibration of the stochastic simulation model uses imphed volatilities of dertvatives where possible, or historical
observed volatillity where 1t 15 not possible to observe meanwngful prices For example, as at 31 December 2009, the UK 10
year-equity at-the-money assumption was set at 26 6 per cent (33 7 per cent as at 31 December 2008) The assumption for
UK property volatility was 17 per cent (31 December 2008 21 per cent) The volatility of UK interest rates has been
calibrated to the implied volatility of UK swaptions which was broadly 15 per cent as at 31 December 2009 (31 December
2008 17 per cent}

(1} Mortahty assumpnons

The key mortahity assumption 1s that for annuities used 1n the calculation of the cost of guarantee annuity options

Annuities 2009 2008

Annuities when 1n Males 90% 90%

payment PCMAO00(100%mc)_1 25%  PCMAO0(100%mc)_1 5%
Females 95% 95%

PCFA00(75%mc) 1 25% PCFAO}75%mc) 1 0%

(1v) Lapse assumptions

The long-term lapse assumptions for the main classes of business are detaled below

2009
Average surrender / paid-up rate for the policy years (% pa)
Product group 15 6-10 11-15 16-20
CWP endowment surrender 25% 2 5% 30% 25%
UWP savings endowment surrender 34% 7 5% 7 3% 5 0%
UWP bond surrender 17 4% 13 0% 16 4% 18 3%
CWP pension surrender 4 8% 4 8% 39%% 35%
UWP individual pension regular
premium surrender 90% T 7% 6 1% 4 0%
UWP individual pension single
premum surrender 9 1% 7 5% 5 0% 38%
2008
Average surrender / paid-up rate for the policy years (% pa)
Product group 1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20
CWP endowment surrender 25% 25% 30% 20%
UWP savings endowment surrender 26% 58% 6 0% 50%
UWP bond surrender 16 0% 15 1% 17 1% 18 8%
CWP pension surrender 30% 30% 30% 30%
UWP individual pension regular
premium Surrender 74% 6 9% 58% 53%
UWP pension single premium surrender 92% 7 7% 50% 4 0%

{v) Other assumptions

Deferred annuity contracts with a guaranteed annuity option have been valued based upon an assumed rate of takeup of the
guaranteed annuity option of 95 0% for the reahistic assessment (95 0% assumed at 31 December 2008)
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31 Insurance contract and nvestment contract with DPF habihties — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivities
{continued)

(b) Non-Profit Funds
The principal assumptions underlymg the calculation of the Non-Profit Fund liabilities are given below

(1) Investment returns and discount rates

2009 2008
Interest rate (net) Interest rate (net)
Class of business % %o
Conventional Life business and non-unit reserves on linked business 210 194
Annuities i payment 367 385
(11) Mortality assumptions
The mortality assumptions for the main classes of business are as follows
Products 2009 2008
Conventional Business
Life Savings (WP & NP) Male/Female 60 5% AMCO00 / 66% AFC0O0 55% AM92 Ult/ 66% AF92 Ult
Pensions (WP & NP) Male/Female 33% AMCO00 / 33% AFCO0 22% AM92 Ult/ 22% AF92 Ul
Life Term Assurance Male/Female 63 3% TMCO00 / 69% TFC00 49 5% AM92 Ulv/44% AF92 Uh
Annutties
Pensions Male/Female 81% PCMAOO LC_1 5 (0 3) 85% PCMAQO(mc) minimum
86% PCFA00_75% 1 5% improvement/90% PCFAQQ
MC_15(03) {75%mc) with minimum 1%
improvement
Purchased Life (excl Male/Female 81% PCMAOGOLC_1 5(03) 85% PCMAOO{mc) minimum
ILD) 86% PCFAO00_75% MC_1 5(03) 1 5% 1improvement/30% PCFAQ0
{75%mc) with mimmum 1%
improvement

For deferred annuities in deferment, an exphcit provision for future improvement has been made by assuming mortahity in
deferment reduces at a rate of 4% pa from the valuation date through deferment

(1} Lapse assumptions

2009
Product Group Average lapse-surrender-paid up rate (% pa) for the pohicy
years
1-5 6-10 10-15 16-20 20+
Unit Linked Life Single Premiuin  surrender 425% 475% 375% 325% 325%
Unit Linked Individual Pensions
Regular Premium surrender 373% 432% 372% 2 34% 234%
Unit Linked Executive Pensions
Regular Premium surrender 7 80% 7 80% 7 80% 7 80% 7 80%
Unit Linked Individual Pensions
Single Premium surrender 4 90% 4 50% 360% 270% 270%
Unit Linked & unitised with-
Profits group pensions regular
premium surrender 341% 450% 4 05% 4 05% 4 05%
Unit Linked & unitised with-
Profits Group Money Purchase
regular premium surrender 675% 6 75% 6 75% 6 75% 675%
Convennonal Life Savings surrender I 50% 1 50% 1 80% 1 50% 120%
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3 Insurance contract and mvestment contract with DPF habihties — assumptions, changes 1n assumptions and sensitivities

(continued)

2008

Average surrender / paid-up rate for the policy years (% pa) |
Product Group 1-5 6-10 10-15 16-20 20+
Unit Linked Life Single
Premium surrender 155% 2 70% 1 88% 163% 163%

Unit Linked Individual Penstons

Regular Premium (non-pupped

policies) surrender 265% 3 05% 275% 2 50% 250%
Unit Linked Executive Pensions

Regular Premum (non-pupped

policies) surrender 5 50% 5 50% 5 50% 5 50% 5 50%
Unit Linked Individual Pensions
Single Pretnium surrender 410% 4 0% 3 00% 2 50% 250%

Unit Linked & unitised with-

Profits group pensions regular

premimm surrender 402% 6 66% 6 00% 6 00% 6 00%
Unit Linked & unitised with-

Profits Group Money Purchase

regular premium surrender 8 70% 8 70% 8 70% 8 70% 870%

Conventional Life Savings surrender 163% 163% 1 95% 130% 1 30%

(3) The effect of changes i key assumptions
(a) With-Profits Fund

There 15 no net impact on profit before tax of the changes in key assumptions within the With-Profits Fund as any change in
policyholder iabilities 1s offset by an equal and opposite movement mn the unallocated surplus of the long-term business

{b) Non-Profit Funds

Changes m certain key assumptions were made during 2009 with the following impacts on profit before tax

2009 2008
£m £m

Variable
Mortality (69 8) 349
Expenses (16 8) 23)

(4) Sensitivity analysis

(a) With-Profits Fund

In all cases there 15 no 1mpact on profit before tax as any change in policyholder liabilities 1s offset by an equal and opposite
movement 1n the unallocated surplus of the long-term business

(b) Non-Profit Funds

The following table demonstrates the effect of changes in key assumptions on profit before tax assuming that the other

assumplions remain unchanged, in respect of Insurance contracts without DPF and Insurance and Investment contracts with DPF
In practice this 15 unlikely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correlated
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31 Insurance contract and mvestment contract with DPF habilities — assumptions, changes m assumptions and sensitivities
(continued)

Variable Change

in variable 2009 2008

£ m £m

Annuitant Mortality 5% reduction (36 8) {27 5)

Other Mortality 5% reduction 76 101

Lapses 10% reduction (83) (4 8)

Maintenance expenses 10% reduction 228 211

Interest rate — change 1n redemption yield M 0 25% reduction (11 9) (10 5)

Interest rates — change n valuation margin @ 0 25% reduction (63 3) (49 2)

1) This interest rate sensitivity shows the impact of a 0 23 per cent movement in gilt yields and all of the consequential impacts
on key economic assumptions including the nsk discount rate, investment returns, the valuation rates of interest and values
of assets backing the business m question This excludes any impact on assets not backing the habilities

2) Thass interest rate sensitivity shows, for pensions annuity business, the impact of a change to the valuation rate of interest
without a corresponding change to asset yields, this would merease the margin available to cover default and other risks

32 Risk management

The Company 1ssues contracts that transfer insurance and financial risk or both This note summarises these risks and the way
n which the Company manages them

The Company assesses the relative costs and concentrations of each type of rnisk through the Individual Capital Assessment
{(“ICA™) and material 1ssues are escalated to the Insurance Risk Comnuttee, the Clencal Medical Executive Commattee and
the HBOS FS Board

(@) Governance framework

The Company 15 part of the Insurance Division of Lloyds Banking Group plc  This Division has established a nisk
management function with responsibility for implementing the Lloyds Banking Group plc risk management framework
within the Company

The approach to nisk management ensures that there 15 effective independent checking or ‘oversight” of key decisions
through the operation of a “three hnes of defence” model The first line of defence 1s line management, who have direct
accountability for risk decistons Risk management provide oversight and challenge and form the second line of defence
Internal Audit constitutes the third hine of defence, which provides the required independent assurance to the Board that nisks
within the Company are recogrised, monitored, and managed within acceptable parameters

An enterpnise-wide risk management framework for the identification, assessment, measurement and management of risk 15 1n
place The framework 1s in hne with Lloyds Banking Group plc’s nisk management principles and covers the full spectrum of
risks that the Company exposed to Under this framework, risks are categonsed according to an approved Loyds Banking
Group plc nisk language which has been adopted across the Company This covers the principal financial risks faced by the
Company, including the exposures to market, nsurance, credit and financial soundness risk The performance of the
Company, 1ts contimuing ability to write business and the strategic management of the business depend on 1ts ability to
manage these risks

Lloyds Banking Group plc retains primary responsibility for the management of investment risks arising n respect of the
shareholder funds within the Company These funds are managed in line with the Lloyds Banking Group plc and Clerical
Medical risk policies Responsibility for the management of al} other risks resides with the Board of each Group company
who have delegated their authonty to the Clerical Halifax Executive Committee

Policy owners, 1dentified from appropriate areas across the business, are responsible for drafting the Lloyds Banking Group
plc and Clerical Medical nsk policies, for ensuring that they remain up-to-date and for facilitating any changes These
policies are subject to at least an annual review, or earher 1If deemed necessary Limats are prescrnibed within which those
responsible for the day to day management of each Group company can take decisions Line management are required to
follow prescribed reporting procedures to the bodies responsible for momitoring compliance with policy and controlling the
risks
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32.

Risk management (continued)

(b) Risk appetite

The Company has defined the methodology for the management of nisk appetite and has set appropriate hmits Where
appropnate for cach hfe company and risk component, limits are defined 1n terms of the amount of capital required to be held
to cover certain specified stressed scenarios

Exposure to each type of risk 15 montored against the prescribed himits and the results of these tests are reported to senior
management

(c) Financial risks

The Company writes a variety of insurance and investment contracts which are subgct to a vanety of financial nsks, as set
out below Coniracts can be either single or regular premium and conventional (non-profit), with-profits or vnit-linked 1n
nature

The Company 15 exposed to a range of financial nsks through 1ts financial assets, financial habihities, remsurance assets and
msurance and mnvestment contract habiliies In particular, the key financial nsk 1s that long-term investment proceeds are not
sufficient to fund the obhgations ansing from 1ts insurance and investment contracts The most important components of
financial nisk are market, insurance, credit and financial soundness risk

The market risks that the Company primanly faces due to the nature of its mvestments and liabihties are interest rate, foreign
exchange, equity and property risk

The Company manages these nisks in a numbers of ways, including nisk appetite assessment and monitoring of capital resource
requirements In addition, the Principles and Practices of Financial Management (“PPFM’ } set out the way 1n which the With
Profits business 1s managed The Company also uses financial instruments (including dervatives) as part of its business activities
and to reduce 1ts own exposure to market nsk and credit nisk

For with-profits business, subject to mimmum guarantees, policyholders” benefits are mfluenced by the smoothed investment
returns on assets held in the With Profits fund The smoothing cushions policyholders from daily fluctuations in investment
markets This process 1s managed 1n accordance with the published PPFM

The Company bears financial nisk in relation to the guaranteed benefits payable under these contracts  The amount of the
guaranteed benefits increases as additional benefits are declared and allocated to policies

For unit-inked busmess, policyholders” benefits are closely linked to the investment returns on the underlymg mternal funds In
the short term, profit and equity are therefore largely unaffected by tnvestment retums on assets in internal unit-linked funds as
any gains or losses will be largely offset by changes in the corresponding insurance and mvestment contract iabihties  However,
any change i the market value of these funds will have an indirect impact on the Company through the coltection of annual
management and other fund related charges As markets nise or fall, these charges nse or fall correspondingly

For Non-Profit business, the principal market nisk 15 interest rate nisk, which anses because assets and labilities may exhibit
differing changes in market value as a result of changes in interest rates  Asset and liability matching s used to mitigate the
impact of changes 1n interest rates where significant exposure exists

Financial assets and financial abihties are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost The summary
of significant accounting pohcies (note 1} describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured and how mncome and
expenses, including farr value gains and losses, are recogmised
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32

Risk management {continued)

The following tables analyse the carrying amount of assets and habilines, with financial assets and financial liabihties being

presented according to their IAS 39 classification

2009 2008
£m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 356 6 2893
At fair value through income
Investments at fair value through income
- equity securities 10,513 5 10,338 5
- debt securities 6,080 5 47407
Denvative financial instruments 5313 6623
Remsurers’ share of investment contracts without DPF habilities 8,473 6 74565
At amortised cost
Loans and recervables 5387 6861
Remsurers’ share of insurance contract and investment contract with DPF
liabilites 5215 2,270 4
27,015.7 26,443.8
Other assets
Current tax receivable 290 78
Investment 1n subsidianes 963 4 1,114 7
Investment properties at fair value 9454 1,214 3
Property 60 774
Prepayments and accrued income 18 24
Deferred tax assets 730 670
Deferred costs 474 9 4779
Intangible assets 22t 1 2708
27146 32323
Total assets 29,730 3 29,676 1
Fmancial habtiities
Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habiliues 16,3394 16,908 0
At fair value through income
Investment contract without DPF Labilities 8,684 9 7,761 0
Derivative financial instruments 1028 1311
At amortised cost
Subordinated debt 6097 1,316 3
Other financial habilities 1,383 8 7185
Borrowings 16 0 169 0
27,136 6 27,003 9
Other habihties
Current tax payables 385 -
Accruals and deferred income 393 46 6
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 16 22
Deferred tax habilities 2207 2505
Unallocated surplus 670 4 469 2
970 5 7685
Total habilities 28,107 1 21,772 4

The timing of the unwind of the deferred tax assets and habilities 1s dependent on the timing of the unwind of the temporary
tmung differences ansing between the tax bases of the assets and hiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes, to which these balances relate

A matunity analysis of the financial iabilities set out in the above tables 15 given i the hquidity risk section of this note
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32, Risk management {(continued)
(1) Market risk

Market nisk 1s the risk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from unfavourable market
movements This nsk typically anises from fluctuations in market prices (equity and property nsk), market interest rates
(interest rate risk) and foreign exchange rates (foreign exchange risk), whether such changes are caused by factors specific to
the individual instrument or 1ts 1ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded 1n the market

Investment holdings within the Company are diversified across markets and, within markets, across sectors Holdings of
individual assets are diversified to minimuse specific risk and large individual exposures are momitored closely For assets held
outwith umit-hinked funds, investments are only permitted 1n countries and markets which are sufficiently regulated and hquid

Market nisk policy 1s dependent on the nature of the funds i question, and can be broadly summansed as follows

s  Assets held in shareholder funds are mvested in money market funds, gilts and investment grade bonds in line with the
policy of Lloyds Banking Group plc to optimise shareholder nisk and retum

s  Unit-kinked assets are invested in accordance with the nature of the fund mandates

¢ Conventional non-profit annuity habilities are “close matched” as far as possible 1n relation to nature and duration

s With Profits habihties are managed 1n line with the relevant Company’s PPFM  Benchmarks and minimum and maximum
holdings n asset classes are specified to allow limied investment management discretion whilst ensuring adequate
diversification Vanable rate bonds and associated additional swap transactions provide significant protection to the With
Profits fund from the effects of interest rate falls in respect of the cost of guaranteed annuity rates

An analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income according to fair value hierarchy (as defined i
note 1 (c))1s given below

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m

Equity securities 10,1198 1050 2887 10,513 5
Debt secunities 3,562 9 25776 - 6,080 5
Denvative financial assets I3 5300 - 5313
Reinsurers’ share of investment contracts without DPF habilities - 84736 - 8473 6
Total assets 13,624.0 11,686 2 2887 25,598.9
Dernvative financial habihities 289 739 - 1028
Investment contract without DPF ltabihities - 8,684 9 - 8,684 9
Total habihties 289 8,758.8 - 8,787 7

There were no significant transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year The table below shows movements in the
assets measured at fair value based on valuation techmques for which any sigmificant input 15 not based on observable market

data (Level 3 only)
Equity Securities
£m
Balance at 1 January 2009 414 1
Total net gains or losses recognised within net realised and net fair values gains on assets at faiwr (95 5)
value through income n the statement of comprehensive income
Additions 2258
Disposals (52 4)
Balance at 31 December 2009 288 7
Total gains and losses for the period mncluded in the statement of comprehensive mcome for 90 9)

assets held at 31 December 2009

In accordance with the transihional provisions of the amendment to IFRS 7 which intreduced the above reconcitiation, no
comparative data has been provided

The sensitivity analtyses given throughout this note are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant In practice, 1t 18 unhkely that 1sotated movements would occur as changes 1n some of the assumptions may be
correlated, for example changes in interest rates and changes in equity  The sensiivity analysis presented represents a
reasonably possible change in a single factor
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Risk management (continued)
() Equity and property risk

The exposure of the Company’s insurance and mvestment contract business to equity and property risk relates to financial
assets and financial habilities whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices other than from interest and
foreign exchange fluctuations This is due to factors specific to individual instruments, their 1ssuers or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market Accordingly, the Company monitors exposure limits both to any one counterparty and any
one market

The senstuvity analysis below illustrates the impact on profit and shareholder equity of changes in equity and property pocess,
net of offsetting movements in nsurance and mmvestment contract liabilittes, at the reporting date

2009 2008

£m £ m

10% increase 1n equity prices 41 41
10% decrease 1n equity prices (41) 41)
10% increase 1n property prices 03 16
10% decrease 1n property prices (03 (16)

(1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 1s the nisk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates and the shape of the yield curve Interest rate nsk in respect of the Company’s msurance and investment contracts
arises when there 15 a mismatch i duration or yield between lhiabilities and the assets backing those habilities

A fall in market interest rates will result in a lower yield on the assets supporting guaranteed investment returns payable to
policyholders This investment return guarantee nsk 1s managed by matching assets to annuity liabilities as closely as possible
An increase 1n market interest rates will result in a reduction in the value of assets subject to fixed rates of interest which may
result in losses 1f, as a result of an mcrease in the level of surrenders, the corresponding fixed income secunities have to be sold

The effect of changes n interest rates 1n respect of financial assets which back insurance contract habilities 15 given in note
31 The effect on the Company of changes 1n the value of investments held in respect of investment contract liabilities due to
fluctuations in market interest rates 1s negligible as any changes will be offset by movements in the corresponding liability

The sensitivity analysis below 1llustrates the impact on profit and shareholder equity of changes 1n interest rate yields on
interest-bearing financial assets, net of offsetting movements 1n insurance and investment contract habilities, at the reporting
date

2009 2008

£m £m

25 basis points mncrease 1n yield curves 119 68
25 basis points decrease n yield curves (119) (6 8)

The prior year sensitivity set out above has been amended to present the profit and equity impact of the stated change in interest
rates on the same basis as the current year calculation
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32. Risk management (contmued)

(1) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange nisk relates to the effects of movements 1in exchange markets mncluding changes in exchange rates The
overall nsk to the Company 1s mimmal due to the following

. The majority of the Company’s principal transactions are carmied out in pounds sterling A small proportion of the
overall Company's business 1s admimstered through the Maastricht branch business where transactions are
predomunantly carried out 1n Euros, the net investment 1n this business 1s hedged as described 1n note 17

. The Company’s Non-Profit property linked mnsurance and mvestment contract iabilities are exactly matched,

. Currency nisk relating to Tier 2 Euro-denominated subordinated debt 1s economically hedged through the use of a
forward contract and other Euro-denominated assets, and

. Guarantee costs for Waith-Profits business are hedged using sterhing, euro and dollar denvatives to match the currency
nsk within the guarantee costs

{2) Insurance nisk

Insurance risk 1s the nsk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputattonal loss, due to fluctuations 1n the
timing, frequency and sevenity of insured/underwritten events and to fluctuations in the uming and amount of claim
settlements This includes fluctuations i profits due to customer behaviour The principal risk the Company faces under
nsurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the amounts expected at the time of determining the
nsurance habihities

The nature of the Company’s business mvolves the accepting of insurance risks which pnimanly relate to mortahty, morbidity,
persistency and expenses

The Company principally writes the following types of life insurance coniracts

. Life assurance — where the life of the policyholder 15 insured againstdeath or permanent disabihty, vsually for pre-
determined amounts

. Annuity products — where typically the polhicyholder 1s entitted to payments which cease upon death

. Morbidity products — where the policyholder is insured againsi the nisk of contracting a defined illness

For contracts where death 1s the insured risk, the most stgmificant factors that could increase the overall level of claims are
epridemics or widespread changes in hifestyle, such as eating, smoking and exercise habis, resulting in earlieror more claims
than expected The possibiity of a pandemic ansing from Swine Flu 1s regarded as a potentially significant mortality risk

For contracts where survival s the insured nisk, the most significant factor 1s continued improvement 1n medial science and
social conditions that would increase longevity

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that
significantly reduce the insurance nsk accepted For contracts with DPF, the participating nature of these contracts results in a
significant portion of the insurance rnisk being shared with the policyholder

Insurance risk 15 also affected by the policyholders’ nght to pay reduced or no future premrums, to terminatethe contract
completely or to exercise a guaranteed annuity option  As a result, the amount of insurance risk 15 also subject to policyholder
behaviour On the assumption that policyholders will make decisions that are in their best interests, overall msurance risk will
generally be aggravated by policyholder behaviour For example, 1t 1s hikely that policyholders whose health has detenorated
significantly will be less inclined to terminate contracts insuring death benefits than those policyholders who remain n good
health

The Company has taken account of the expected impact of policyholder behaviour n setiing the assumptions used to measure
1nsurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilitics

The principal methods available to the Company to control or mitigate longevity, mortality and morbidity risk are through the
following processes

Underwniting (the process to ensure that new insurance proposals are properly assessed),

Pricing-to-nsk (new insurance proposals would usually be priced in accordance with the underwnting assessment),
Claims management,

Product design,

Policy wording,

Product Management, and

The use of reinsurance and other nisk mitigation techmgues

® * 9 s »»
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Risk management (continued)

Rates of mortahity and morbiudity are investigated annually based on the Company’s recent experience and future monality
assumptions are set using the latest population data available Each Company’s reinsurance arrangements are reviewed at least
annually

Persistency risk 1s the nsk associated with the abihity to retan long-term business and the ability to renew short-term business
The Company aims to reduce its exposure 10 persistency nisk through revising the commussion structure on future product
developments and undertaking vanous initiatives to promote customer loyalty

Further information on assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivities in respect of insurance contract and investment
contract with DPF habihities 1s given 1n note 31

{3) Credut nisk

Credit nsk 1s the nisk of reductions in earnings and / or value through financial or reputational loss as a result of the failure of
the party with whom we have contracted to meet 1ts obligations (both on and off balance sheet)

Investment counterparty default risk anises primanly from holding invested assets to meet habilities, and reinsurer default
credit nsk primanly arises from exposure to remnsurers

Credit nisk n respect of unit-hnked funds 1s borne by the policyholders and credit nsk m respect of With Profits funds s
largely borne by the pelicyholders Consequently, the Company has no significant exposure to credit risk for those funds
The tables in this section reflect the credit risk on assets held within these funds, but do not take account of the offsetting
reduection in habilities to unit-linked and with-profit polhicyholders that would be expected 1n the event of default

For non-tinked funds mvestments, hmits on the exposure to a single entity are specified and mornitored Bond exposurcsarc
managed through maximum exposures to individual assets and sectors Assets are restricted to securities in a specified hst of
countnies, and hmits apphicable to property portfolios are set to prevent concentration of exposure to single lenants and smgle
buildings

Sharcholder funds are managed m Iine with the wider Lloyds Banking Group plc Credit Risk Pohicy and the principles are
the same as those outlined above 1n respect of non-hnked funds

Remnsurance 15 primanly used to reduce insurance nsk  However, 1t 1s also sought for other reasons such as improving
profitability, reducing capital requrements and obtaining technucal support In addition, retnsurance 1s also used to offer
Investment Fund Links which we are unable to provide through other means. The Company’s reinsurance strategy 1s to
reduce the volatility of profits through the use of reinsurance whilst managing the insurance and credit risk within the
constraints of the risk appetite limis

The Company has reinsurance on some Imes of business where mortahty or morbidity nisk exceeds set retention iomits Thas
does not, however, discharge the Company’s hability as pnimary insurer If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the
Company remains hable for the payment © the policyholder All new material remnsurance treaties are subject to Board
approval and all remsurance arrangements are reviewed annually te ensure that the remnsurance strategy is bemng achieved
This includes an assessment of the exposure to each reinsurer to ensure that 1t 15 within the defined limnt

Policies are treated as lapsed when payments from the policyhelder have not been received for a penod of ume and the
policyholder has not provided further information n respect of the non-payment of premiums

Exposure 1o other trade debtors 15 assessed on a case by case basis, using a credit rating agency where appropriate
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The following table sets out details of those assets which bear credit risk
2009 2008
£ m £m
At fair value through income
Liqudity funds classed as equity 2,194 2 2,063 4
Debt secunties at fair vatue 6,080 5 4,740 7
Dernvative financial instruments at fair value 5313 6623
At amortised cost
Loans and receivables at amortised cost 5387 686 1
Reinsurers’ share of imnsurance contract and investment contract with 5215 2,270 4
DPF habihties
Remnsurers' share of imvestment contract without DPF habilities 84736 7,456 5
Cash and cash equivalents 3566 2893
Total assets bearing credit risk 18,696 4 18,168.7

The tables below analyse financial assets subject to credit risk using Standard & Poor’srating or equuvalent

As at 31 December 2009

BBB or
Total AAA AA A lower*  Not rated
£fm £m £fm £m £fm £m
Liquidity funds classed as equity 2,194 2 2,194 2 - - - -
Debt secunities 6,080 5 43305 2910 8702 5583 305
Denvative financial instruments 5313 - 40 503 9 101 133
Loans and receivables 5387 - - - - 5387
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract and investment contract
with DPF habihities 5215 - - - - 5215
Retnsurers' share of investment
contract without DPF habilities 8473 6 - - - - 84736
Cash and cash equivalents 356 6 94 9 254 4 73 - -
Total 18,696 4 6,619 6 549 4 1,381.4 568 4 9,577 6
*Of which £483 4m 1s BBB rated
As at 31 December 2008
BEB or
Total AAA AA A lower* Notrated
£m £m £m £m £ m £m
Liquidity funds classed as equity 2,063 4 2,063 4 - - - -
Debt securities 4,740 7 27771 3159 1,1201 4953 323
Denvative financial instruments 662 3 245 862 436 0 107 5 81
Loans and receivables 686 1 - - - - 686 1
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
contract and investment contract
with DPF liabilities 2,270 4 - - - - 22704
Reinsurers' share of investment
contract without DPF habihties 7456 5 - - - - 74565
Cash and cash equivalents 2893 142 1 125 8 214 - -
Total 18,168.7 5,007.1 527.9 1,577.5 602 8 10,453.4

*Of which £540 4m 1s BBB rated

Assets classified as “not rated” in the above tables are not rated by Standard and Poor’s or an equivalent raling agency

No assets were past due but not impaired at the reporting date (2008 £ml) There were no :impaired assets at 31 December 2009
or 31 December 2008 No terms m respect of financial assets had been renegotiated at 31 December 2009 or 31 December 2008
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Risk management (continued)

Counterparty limuts are governed by the fund mandates in place for the underlying funds within the Company Each mandate
sets out the permutied asset types within each fund with a minimum and maximum permitted holding by asset type, and
within each asset type there are further restrictions set down by credit rating of the assets held Counterparty himits are set
out within those by asset types according to the credit rating of the instruments held — these vary by mandate according to the
stated fund objective 1in the Mandate

The portfolio of mandates ts reviewed at least annually and 15 designed to set a counterparty risk threshold that 1s lower than
those required for FSA reporting

(1) Concentration risk

Credit concentration risk relates to the inadequate diversification of credit nsk This risk 18 managed through compliance with
the fund mandates in place for those funds As previously stated, defaults on unit-hnked and with-profits funds would be
matched by an offsetung reduction in habilities to unit-linked and with-profits policyholders

Each mandate sets out the permitted asset types within each fund with a minimum and maximum permitted holding by asset
type, and within each asset type there are further restrictions set down by credit rating of the assets held Counterparty limits
are set out within those by asset types according to the credit rating of the istruments held — these vary by mandate
according to the stated fund objective

The portfolio of mandates 1s reviewed at least annually and within the non-profit and shareholder funds 15 designed to set
counterparty risk thresholds that are lower than those required for FSA reporting

The only assets permitted to be held with no hmat on concentration risk in any fund mandate are UK Treasury secunties
These are unhimited, with holdings at 31 December 2009 being £3 6bn (2008 £2 5bn), of which £3 Obn (2008 £2 4bn) was
held 1n unit-linked and with-profit funds

The largest exposures to which counterparty limits are apphed in the fund mandatesare to the range of Insight hiquidity
funds These AAA rated funds have UCITS status and a diverse portfolio of investments Exposure across these hquidity
funds totalled £2 9bn (2008 £3 3bn), of which £1 8bn (2008 £2 4bn) was held 1n unit-linked and with-profit funds

Other than UK Treasury securities and hquidity fund investments, the Company did not have any significant concentration
of credit nsk with a single counterparty or group of counterparties where hmuits applied at 31 December 2009 or 31
December 2008 The next largest exposure at 31 December 2009, without taking into account collateral held or other credit
enhancements, was to HSBC Bank plc totalling £304 0m (2008 JP Morgan Chase & Co totalling £225 Om) and this
represented 1 8% of the investments held (2008 1 3%) £284m of the exposure to HSBC Bank plc was held in the umt-
hinked and with-profit funds

The Company marntains strict control limits on the derivative positions held by each fund as set out 1n the Insurance Division
Denivatives Policy

(1) Collateral management
Collateral in respect of OTC dervatives

The requirement for collateralisation, including the levels at which collateral 1s requared and the types of asset that are
deemed to be acceptable collateral, are set out 1n a Credit Support Annex ( CSA™) A CSA 15 a bilateral legal agreement
which, once signed, forms part of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA™) agreement between the
Company and the counterparty

A CSA must be completed for over the counter (“OTC™) dertvatives as part of the contracts for such transactions The CSA
will require cotlateralisation where any net exposure to a counterparty exceeds the OTC counterparty hmat, which must be
established 1n accordance with the Insurance Division's Risk Policy The aggregate uncollaterahsed exposure to any one
counterparty must not exceed hmits specified 1n the Insurance Dhvision's Denvative Policy  Where derivative counterparties
ar¢ related, the aggregate net exposure 15 considered for the purposes of applying these hmits

Collateralisation 1s the pledging or receiving of assets as a guarantee against the fulfilment of a future obligation, normally
through a cash transfer or asset dehvery

The aggregate exposure, net of any collateralisation, to any one counterparty, across all funds and transactions, should not
exceed £225m

Collateral 1s pledged or received n cash and cash equivalents

51




CLERICAL MEDICAL INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED (3196171) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

32

Risk management (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents as set out below have been pledged n accordance with the terms of the relevant CSASs entered into
in respect of various OTC denvative contracts

2009 2008

£fm £m

Cash and cash equivalents 3879 3411
Total 387.9 3411

The Company has the right to mvest cash received 1n short term investments such as Liquitdity Funds to generate mgher
returns

Collateral in respect of securtties lending

The Company enters into secunties lending transactions  The Board ts responsible for setting the parameters of securities
lending and therefere changes to these parameters The accepted collateral can include cash, equities, certain bonds and
money market instruments  On a daily basis, the fair value of collateral 1s compared to the fair value of stock on loan The
value of collateral must always exceed the value of stock on loan

Securities lending 15 permitted 1n accordance with the Insurance Divisien Credit Risk Pohcy on secunties lending  All
securities lending takes place on an open/call basis, enabling the loan to be recalled at any time within the standard settlement
terms of the market concermned

The pohicy requires all lending to be undertaken via a partial indemmfied programme (where the operator of the programme
provides an indemnification against borrower and collateral default) The partial programme does not cover the re-investiment
of outright cash and therefore the policy specifies that the Insurance Investment Control Committee (“1ICC™) will set
counterparty hrmts for the re-investment of same

Additionally, the IICC will set himuts on the maximum amount of any security that may be lent and the markets 1n which
lending can take place

The policy requires acceptable collateral to be pledged to at least the value of secunties lent and sets specific parameters over
what qualifies as acceptable collateral

There were no collateral defaults n respect of secunities lending during the year ended 31 December 2009 which required a
call to be made on collateral During 2008 possession was taken of collateral held on secunities lending transactions with
Lehman Brothers, following the collapse of that company The fair value of the collateral obtained compnised of £171 9m
cash There was no material 1mpact on profit before tax relating to the recovery

(4) Financral soundness risk

Financial soundness risk covers the risk of financial farlure, reputational loss or loss of earmings and/or value ansing from a
lack of hquidity, funding or capital and/or the nappropriate recording, reporting or disclosure of financial, taxation and
regulatory information

(i} Financial and prudential regulatory reporting, tax and disclosure risks

The Company 15 exposed to the nisk that policies and procedures are not sufficient to mamntain adequate books and records to
support statutory, regulatory and tax reporting and to prevent and detect financial reporting fraud

The Company has developed procedures to ensure that comphance with both current and potential future requirements are
understood and that policies are aligned to 1ts rnisk appetite  The Company maintains a system of internal controls,
consistently applied, providing reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded and undertaken in accordance with
delegated authorities that permit the preparation and disclosure of financial statements, regulatory reporting and tax retums in
accordance with IFRSs, statutory and regulatory requirements

The Company undertakes a programme of werk designed to support an annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporing, to 1dentify tax habilities and to assess emerging legislation and regulation

(1) Liquudsty risk

Ligmdity nisk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its financial cormmitments as they
fall due, or can secure them only at an excessive cost Liquidity rnisk may result from either the inability to sell finanaal assets
quickly at their fair values, or from an nsurance lrability falling due for payment earher than expected, or from the inability
to generate cash inflows as anticipated
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Risk management (continued)

Liquidnty risk has been analysed as ansing from payments to policyholders (including those where payment is at the
discretion of the policyholder) and non policyholder related activity (such as investment purchases and the payment of
shareholder expenses)

Liquidity risk 1n respect of each of the major product areas 1s primanly mitigated as follows
Arnuity contracts

Assets are held which are specifically chosen to match the expectation of timing of anpuity payments Gilts and corporate
bonds are selected to reflect, as closely as possible, the expected annuity payments and are regularly rebalanced to ensure that
no liquidsty nisk anises 1n the future

With-Profits contracts

For With Profits business, a portfolio of assets 15 held in line with investment mandates which will reflect policyholder
expectations as set out n the published PPFM

Liqudity 1s maintained within the portfolio via the holding of a substantial number of lughly liquid assets, principally gilts
and bonds (Corporate Bonds have not proved liquid of late), and by requining the fund manager to hold six months future
expected cashflow in hquid assets at any one time Management also have the ability to sell less hquid assets at a reduced
price If necessary, with any loss passed on to policyholder in hine with policyholders’ reasonable expectauons Losses are
managed and mitigated by anticipating policyholder behaviour and sales of underlying assets within funds

In order to quantify the Iiquidity nsk exposure, various stress tests are considered Liquidity risk 1s measured for each
company by comparwng the projected outflow m the stress scenario for the following month against the sum of hqud
resources availablc

Non-Profit funds

For unit-hnked products, portfolios are invested 1n accordance with unit fund mandates Deferral clauses are included 1n
policyholder contracts to give time, when necessary, te reahise linked assets without being a forced seller As at 31 December
2009, there are no funds under management subject to deferral

A manager’s box 1s also held to mitigate the risk of normal disinvestments i the course of business A disinvesting
policyholder receives the closing price on the date of surrender This price can be affected by the level of disinvestment
thereby deferming the hiquudity nisk to the pelicyholder

For non linked products, mvestments are mostly held tn gilts with munimal hiquidity nsk  Investments are arranged to
mimimise the possibility of being a distressed seller whilst at the same time investing to meet policyholder obhigations This 1s
achieved by anticipating policyholder behaviour and sales of underlying assets within funds

Shareholder funds

For sharcholder funds, hquidity nisk 15 managed 1n line with the Lloyds Banking Group Funding and Liquidity Risk Policy

The following tables indicate the iming of the contractual cashflows arising from the Company’s financial habilitics, as
required by IFRS 7 Liquidity nsk 1n respect of insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilities has been
analysed based on the expected pattern of maturities as permitted by IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts™ rather by contractual
maturity A maturity analysis of investment contracts without DPF based on expected contract maturities 1s also given as it 1s
considered that this analysis provides additional usefui information 1n respect of the liquidity nisk relating to contracts written
by the Company
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Risk management (continued)

The following tables indicate the iming of the contractual cashflows arising from the Company’s financial habihities, as

required by IFRS 7

As at 31 December 2009

Liabilities Carrying Contractuat cash{lows (undiscounted)
amount* No stated  Less than 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 years More
maturity month months months than §
years
£m £ m £m £m £m £m
Investment
contract without
DPF habilities
8,684 9 - 8,684 9 - - - -
Denvative
financial
instruments 1028 - 20 198 28 251 531
Subordinated
debt 6097 4090 - - 82 493 2383
Borrowings 160 - 160 - - - -
Other financial
habihities 1,383 8 - 1,383 8 - - - -
Total 10,7972 409 0 10,086.7 19.8 110 744 291.4

*The carrying amount 15 presented on a discounted basts In accordance with IFRS 7, the contractual cashflows are presented

on an undiscounted basis

As at 31 December 2008

Liabilitres Carrying Contractual cashflows {undiscounted)
amount* Nostated  Lessthan  1-3 months 312 1-5 years More
maturity 1 month months than 5
years
£m £ m £m £m £m £m
Investment
contract without
DPF habihities
7,761 0 7,761 ¢ - -
Derivative
financial
mstruments 1311 160 795 13 61 282
Subordmnated
debt 1,316 3 526 2 - 140 1054 544 4
Borrowings 1690 169 0 - -
Other financial
lrabihities 7185 7185 - -
Total 10,0959 926 2 8,664.5 795 15.3 1115 572 6

*The camrying amount is presented on a discounted basis In accordance with IFRS 7, the contractual cashflows are presented

on an undiscounted basis

The contractual cashflow analysis set out above has been based on the earliest possible contractual date, regardless of the

surrender penalties that might apply and has not been adjusted to take account of such penalties
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32. Risk management (continued)

An analysis of insurance contract and investment contract without DPF ltabilities by expected contract maturity, on a

discounted basis, 15 shown below

As at 31 December 2009

Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
mvestment contracts £m than months months years than 5
1 month £m £im £m years
£m £m
Insurance contract and mvestment contract with 16,3394 152 8 2778 13121 5,796 6 8.800 1
DPF habilities
Investment contract without DPF hatmhties 8,684 9 894 1407 762 5 3,230 2 4,462 1
As at 31 December 2008
Maturity Analysis for insurance and Total Less 1-3 3-12 1-5 More
mvestment contracts £m than menths months years than 5
1 mounth fm £fm £m years
£m £m
Insurance contract and investment contract with 16,908 0 177 0 3350 13519 6,106 5 89367
DPF habihities
Investment contract without DPF habilities 7,761 0 921 143 6 594 7 2,723 2 4,207 1

(1) Capital risk

Capatal risk 1s defined as the risk that

» the Company, or one of its separately regulated subsdiaries, has msufficient capital to meet its regulatory capital

requirements,

» the Company has insufficient capital to provide a stable resource 1o absorb all losses up to a confidence level

defined 1n the nisk appetite,

* the Company loses reputational status by having capital that 1s regarded as inappropniate, either in quantity, type or

distnbution, and/or
¢ the capital structure 1s mefficient

The business of several of the companies withun the Company 15 regulated by the FSA The FSA specifies theminimum
amount of capital that must be held by each of the regulated compantes within the Company 1 addition to their insurance
habilihes Under the FSA rules, each insurance company within the Company must hold assets in excess of the higher of

(1)  the Pallar 1 amount, which 1s calculated by applying fixed percentages to premiums and claims, and
() the Pillar 2 amount, which 1s derived from an economic capital assessment undertaken by each regulated company,

which 1s reviewed by the FSA

The minimum required capital must be maintained at all times throughout the year The fair value surplus s regularly
estimated in order to ensure that capital maintenance requirements are being met

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are

. to comply with the insurance capital requirements set out by the FSA m the UK,

to have sufficient further capital to safeguard the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for the equuty shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,

. when capital 15 needed, to require an adequate return to the equity shareholders by pricing insurance and
mnvestment contracts according to the level of risk associated with the business wnitten, and

+  to meet the requirements of the Scheme of Transfer

The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to reflect changes in economic conditions and the nisk
charactenistics of the underlying assets In order to maimntain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to the equity shareholders, return capital to the equity shareholders, 15sue new shares or seil assets

The Company’s capital comprises all components of equity, movements in which are set out 1n the statement of changes in

equity and includes subordinated debt (note 25)
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33

Risk management (continued)

The table below sets out the regulatory capital and the required capital held at 31 December 1a cach year on a Pillar 1 basis
The current year information 1s, 1in general, an estimate that will be updated once the FSA returns for the year are finalised

2009 2008

£m £m

Regulatory capital held 2,624 3,558
Regulatory required capital 996 1,603

All minimum regulatory requirements were met duning the year
(1v) Legal and regulatory risks

The Company also faces a number of legal and regulatory risks, reflecting the volume and pace of change within the UK
This impacts the Company both operationally, 1n terms of costs of comphance and uncertainty about regulatoryexpectations,
and strategically, through pressure on key earnmings streams The latter could potentially result 1n major changes to business
and pricing models, particularly i the UK retail market Business planning processes continue to reflect change o the
regulatory environment

Regulators are interested in protecting the nghts of the polhicyholders and ensuring that the Company is satisfactonly
managng affairs for the benefit of the policyholders Regulators are also keen to ensure that the Compay maintains
approprate selvency levels to meet unforeseen habilities arising from reasonably foreseeable economic shocks or natural
disasters  As such, the Company is subject to regulatory requirements which prescribe and impose certain restnictive
provisions

Related party transactions

(a) Ultimate parent and shareholding

The Company’s immediate parent undertaking 1s HBOS Financial Services Limited, @ company registered in the United
Kingdom HBOS Financial Services Limited has taken advantage of the prowvisions of the Companies Act 2006 and has not
produced consolidated financial statements

The Company’s ulhmate parent company and ulimate controlling party 15 Lloyds Banking Group ple, which 1s also the parent
undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group accounts are drawn up and of which the Company 1s a member

HBOQOS plc 1s the parent undertaking of the smallest such group of undertakings Copies of the Lloyds Banking Group plc
financial statements in which the Group and Company are consolidated can be obtained from the Group Secretary’s Department,
Llovds Banking Group ple, 25 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7THN
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Related party transactions (continued)

(b} Transactions and balances with related parties

The Company has entered mto the following transactions with other related partics duning the vear and holds the following
balances with other related parties at the end of the year

2009 2008
Counterparty Transaction type Relationship £m £m
HBOS Insurance & Investment  Recharges Fellow group undertaking (({)] -
Group
Other receivables (recharges) Fellow group undertaking 07 05
HBOS Financial Services Ltd Other payables Parent undertaking (266 0) 132
Recharges (3823) (137 8)
Hahfax Pl¢ Other payables Fellow group undertaking 4 8) “4n
Recharges 661) (10)
Lloyds Banking Group Plc Investment transactions Ultimate parent 296 -
undertaking
Investments 296 -
Clerical Medical International Other recervables Fellow group underaking - 202
Holdings BV
Recharges - 06
CMI Insurance Company Litd Other receivables Fellow group undertaking - 56
CMI Insurance Luxembourg SA  Loans Fellow group undertaking 1030 202 1
Loans granted during the vear - 1529
Recharges - 18
Hahfax Fund Management Ltd  Recharges Fellow group undertaking 09 -
Clerical Medical PEP Managers  Other payables Subsidiary undertaking (03) -
P E G Investment Company Ltd Other payables Subsidiary undertaking on -
HBOS Investment Fund Managers Loans Fellow group undertaking 26 35
Ltd
Loans granted durning the year (0 8) 35
Other payables - e
Recharges - 1)
HECM Customer Services Ltd ~ Other recervables Fellow group undertaking - 05
Factoring collections 20) 314
Other recervables - a9
Factoring 20 (29 9)
Other payables - 38
Recharges (39 27
Other payables 06 -
Bank of Scotland Ltd Cash at bank Fellow group undenaking 14 1 807
Cash at bank transactions (66 6) 579
Other payables - (139
Recharges - (175 7)
CMI Financial Services Ltd Other recervables Fellow group undertaking - 03
Marketing recharge - 48
Insight Investment Services Ltd  Other recervables Fellow group undertaking - 18
Investment charges - 112
Clerical Medical Finance Plc Loan transactions Fellow group undertaking 6718 627
Interest 315 60 5
Loans and interest payable (606 9) (1,320 0)
CME Financial Services BY Other payables Fellow group undertaking - (18 3)
Recharges - (64 5)
Clencal Medical European
Financial Services Other payables Feliow group undertaking - -
Recharges (329 -
CMI Financial Management
Services Lid Other payables Fellow group undertaking 02 on
Recharges 23 03)
Heidelberger Leben Co Other payables Feliow group undertaking - 02)
Recharges - (1D
Insight Investment Management  Other payables Fellow group undertaking - (72)

Lid
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Retated party transactions (continued)

Investment charges (B59 (823)
Invista Real Estate Investment Other payables Fellow group undertaking ©6) (50)
Management
Investment charges 82) (13 6)
Clerical Medical Managed Funds Loans Subsidiary undertaking 1000 100 0
Ltd
Other recervables 98 641
Reassurance 1583 1106
Other recetvables 1207 312
Stocklending 04 306
Other payables - @0
Other receivables 518 -
Mevement 1n other recervables 557 -
Reassurance 27 07
Clernical Medical Venture Loans Fellow group undertaking 546 559
Investments
L.oans granted during the year (14 71
Halifax Lafe Ltd Other receivables Subsidiary undertaking - 156
Commisston - 20
Loans recervable - (0 3)
Loans - 512
Clerical Medical Forestry Loans payable Subsidiary undertaking 237 (28 2)
Loans 45 341
Clenical Medical Properties Loans payable Subsidiary undertaking - (0 9)
Scottish Widows plc Other payables Fellow group undertaking (169 -
Reassurance (169) -
Scottish Widows Investment Other payables Fellow group undertaking (50) -
Partnership Lid
Investment charges 50 -

On 13 January 2009, HM Treasury subscnbed for 2,597 million shares in Lloyds Banking Group plc, the Company's ultimate
parent company On 16 January 2009, Lioyds Banking Group acquired HBOS plc 1n an all share acquisition which, together with
the shares subscribed for on 13 January 2009, gave HM Treasury a 43 38 per cent interest in Lloyds Banking Group’s ordinary
share capital and, consequently, HM Treasury became a related party of the Company from this date

Transactions between the Company and key management

Transactions between the key management personnel of the Company and parties related to them as defined by IAS 24 are as
follows

Key management compensation

2009 2008

£ £

Salanes and other short-term benefits 345,684 288 638
Pension contributions and entitlements 34332 40,521
Other long-term benefits 46,279 42,103
Total 426,295 371,282

Certain members of key management in the Company, including the highest paid director, provide services to other companies
within Lloyds Banking Group plc In such cases, for the purpeses of this note, figures have been included based on an
apportionment to the Company of the total compensation eamned

Directors sit on several boards and their benefits are allocated to a company depending on the proportion of their time that
they spend as a director of that company

Retirement benefits are accruing to two Directors (2008 three) under defined benefit pension schemes No directors (2008
none) are paying into a defined contribution scheme
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35.

36

Related party transactions {continued)

Life assurance contracts

Number of key 2009
management £000
personnel

Valuation as at 1 January 2009 or date of appointment, if later 1 267

Premiums paid/amounts invested dunng the year 1 01

Total sum nsured/value of investment at 31 December 2009 1 26 8
Detail regarding the highest paid director 1s as follows

2009 2008

£ £

Apportioned aggregate emoluments - 148,250

Pension contributions and entitlements - 21,210

The highest pad director’s emoluments were not required to be disclosed for the year ended 31 December 2009 as they fell below
the appropriate threshotd

Stocklending

The aggregate value of secuniies on loan by the Company 1s £ml (2008 £1,856 9m) Securities on loan are included in
mvestments at fair value through income and no account 15 taken of collateral held The aggregate value of collateral held 1s
£1 3m (2008 £2,035 6m) This collateral 1s 1n the form of high quality bonds and cash Further detail in respect of collateral
15 provided 1n note 32

Capital commitments

The Company had contracted for, but not paid for, £22 8m (2008 £64 0m) of capital expenditure 1n respect of mvestment
property at the balance sheet date These amounts are not recognised 1n the financial statements

Standards and interpretations effective 1n 2009

The following standards, amendments to and mterpretations of published standards which have the potential to 1impact on the
Company’s operations have been 1ssued and are mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2009 Their relevance to the
Company’s operations 1s assessed below

e Amendment to [AS 23 * Borrowing Costs” This standard requires that borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisiien, construction or production of a qualhifying asset should form part of the cost of that asset Other borrowing
costs should be recognised as an expense The amendment removes the previously allowable alternative treatment of
mmediately recognising as an expense borrowing costs that relate to assets that take a substantial penod of time to get
ready for use or sale Adoption of this standard has had no impact on the financial results or position of the Company as
the alternative treatment previously allowed under 1AS 23 was not adopted

+ Amendment to [AS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements’ This standard sets out overall requirements for the
presentation of financial statements, gudelines for their structure and mimimum requirements for their content  All
changes in equity in respect of transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders are required to be
presented separately from changes 1n equity ansing from transactions with other parties (“non-owner’ ), 1n a statement of
changes in equity  All non-owner changes in equity (comprehensive income) are required to be presented in one
statement of comprehensive income or n two statements (an income statement and a staement of comprehensive
mcome) The changes required on adoption of this standard relate only to presentation and disclosure and have therefore
had no averall impact on the financial results or position of the Company other than to rename the income staement as
the statement of comprehensive income and the cash flow statement as the statement of cash flows IAS 1 has been
further amended by an amendment to IAS 32, details of winch are set out 1n later in this section
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Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentatien of Financial Statements” and 1AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation” The
amendments are relevant to entities that have issued financial instruments that are (1) puttable financial struments
{instruments which allow the holder to require the 1ssuer to redeem the instruments for cash), or (11} instruments, or
components of instruments, that 1npose on the entity an obhigation to deliver 1o another party a pro rata share of the net
assets of the entity only on liquidation Under the revised IAS 32, subject to extensive detailed criteria being met, such
mstruments will be classified as equity whereas, prior to these amendments, they would have been classified as financial
hatihties The amendments will require reclassifications from or to equity when the specified critena are no longer met,
or when they are subsequently met 1AS 1 has been amended to require disclosure of (1) summary quantitative date about
the amount classified as equity, (n) the entity’s objectives, policies and processes for redeeming the instruments, and (1)
the expected cash outftow on redemption and how this has been calculated 1n respect of a puttable financial mnstrument
which has been classified within equity These amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU but adeption would
have had no impact on the financial results or posiion of the Company

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2008 {majority of changes effective for accourting periods
begmning on or after 1 January 200%)— this 1s the first standard published under the IASBs annual improvements
process, which 1s intended to deal with non-urgent, minor amendments to standards The standard includes 35
amendments and 1s spht into two parts (1) amendments that result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes, and (1) amendments that are terminology or editonal changes only Adoption of this standard
has resulted in a change of disclosure 1n the Company financial statements for property under construction or
development for future use This 1s now treated as Investment Property since it 1s within the scope of IAS 40 as a result
of the Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2008 It was previously treated as Property, Plant
and Equtpment since 1t was within the scope of IAS 16 Other than that, adoption of this standard has had only a mmor
impact on some of the disclosures given in the Company financial statements

Amendments to IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments
Disclosures” The amendments allow IFRS reporters to reclassify financial instruments in the same manner as currentiy
permutted under US generally accepted accounting practice  The changes to IAS 39 permut an entity to reclassify non-
denivanve financial assets falling within the scope of IAS 39 out of the fair value through profit and less (“FVTPL™) and
available for sale categones in limited circumstances Adoption of these amendments has had no 1mpact on the financiat
results or position of the Company or Company as no financial assets falling within the scope of these amendments are
held

Amendments to JAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” and IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of
embedded derivauives” This amendment clanfies the consequences if the fair value of an embedded derivative that
would have to be separated from 1ts host contract cannot be measured reliably  These amendmens have not yet been
endorsed by the EU but adoption of these amendments would have had no impact on the financial results or position of
the Company or Company

Amendment to JAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’ (effective for accounting penods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009) The amendment removes the defimtion of the “cost method under IAS 27, thereby removing
the distinction between pre- and post-acquisition profits in an entity’s separate financial statements  All dividends from a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate can therefore be recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive
income Previously, dividends paid out of pre-acquisition profits were set against the carrying value of the investment n
the balance sheet However, an entity must now consider whether the payment of such dividends results in impairment of
the relevant investment 1AS 27 has also been amended to effectively allow the cost of an investment 1n a subsidhary, 1n
limited reorgamsations, to be based on the previous carrying amount of the subsidiary rather than 1ts fair value Adoption
of these amendments has had no impact on the financial results or position of the Company Generally, due to the capital
constraints applicable to the entity’s subsidianies which are carried at cost, dividends are not paid out of pre-acquisition
reserves 5o no tmpairment losses would be expected to anse 1n respect of the payment of dividends from these entities
No reorganisations have been carmed out which meet the amended conditions set ontin 1AS 27 These amendments have
not yet been endorsed by the EU

Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosures” (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009) The amendments intreduce enhanced disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity nsk  For
fair value measurements, a three level hierarchy has been intreduced A financial mstrument should be classified nto
cne of these levels in 1ts entirety, with the appropriate level in the hierarchy being determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that 1s “significant” to the fair value measurement  Adoption of these amendments has resulted in additional
quantitative disclosure being provided in the relevant notes The amendments n respect of hiquidity nisk clarify the scope
of 1items to be included 1n the matunty analyses required by IFRS 7 by changing the definition of hquidity nsk te include
only financial liabihities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial instrument  The amendments also clanfy
that a hybnd contract that 15 a financial hability should not be separated into a host contract as related embedded
derivanive for the purpose of the maturity analysis  Adoption of these amendments has had no impact on the hquidity
risk disclosures provided by the Company
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Standards and interpretations in 1ssue but not adopted early

The following standards, amendments to and interpretations of published standards have been issued and will berelevant to
the Company’s operations but have not been adopted early by the Company

Amendment to 1AS 27 "Consolidated and Scparate Financial Statements” (effective for accounting pertods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009) The standard requires that any changes in the parent's ownership of a subsidiary after control 1s
obtained that do not result i a loss of control should be accounted for as transactions with shareholders in their capacity
as sharcholders As a result, any gams or losses anising from such transactions would be taken directly to equity rather
than being recognised through the statement of comprehensive income  The standard also specifies the accounting
required when control of an entity 15 lost  Adoption of this standard will only be required 1n respect of any future
changes n the contro! of entities accounted for by the Company 1n accordance with IAS 27  Currently, such transactions
are generally accounted for under IAS 39, as set out at policy (h)

Amendment to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement” (effective for accounting periods
beginning on or afier 1 July 2009) This amendment clarifies how the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or
portion of cash flows 15 ehigible for hedge designation should be applied 1n particular situations  Adoption of this
amendment will have no impact on the financial results or posihon of the Company or Company This amendment has
not yet been endorsed by the EU

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards 2009 (majonity of changes effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010) Ths 1s the second standard published under the IASBs annual improvements
process, which 13 intended to deal with non-urgent, mimor amendments 1o standards The standard includes amendments
to 12 standards Adoption of th:s standard has had no tmpact on financial results, financial position or disclosures given
in the Company and Company financial statements Ths standard has not yet been smdorsed by the EU

Amendment to 1AS 24 “Related Party Ihsclosures (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011) Ths revised standard simplifies the disclosure requirements for entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by a government and clarifies the defimition of a related party A partial exemption 1s provided
from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24 for governmentrelated entities, meaning that there 15 no need to disclose
related party transactions and outstanding balances (including commitments) with (1) a government that has control, joint
control or sigmficant influence over the reporting entity, and () an other entity that 1s a related party because the same
govemment has control, joint control or significant influence over both the reporting entity and the related entity  The
amendment also simplifies the defimtion of a related party, clanfies its intended meaning and eliminates a number of
mconsistencies  Adoption of this amendment will have no impact on the finaneial results, financial position or
disclosures given n the financial statements This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments Part 1 Classification and Measurement” (effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013) 1FRS 9 replaces those parts of [AS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of financial
assets Under IFRS 9, only two measurement categones are available being fair value through profit or loss and
amortised cost  Previously, categones of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity were also available The decision on
classification 15 made at initial recogmtion and will depend on an entity’s business model for managing s fimncial
instruments and the contractual cash flow charactensucs of the financial nstruments  An winstrument 1s subsequently
measured at amortised cost only 1f 1t 15 a debt instrument and (1) the objective of the entity’s business model 15 to hold the
asset 1o collect the contractual cash flows, and (1) the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only payments of principal
and interest  All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss  All equity mstruments are
to be subsequently measured at fair value Gains and losses in respect of equity tnstruments held for trading wall be
recognised through the income statement For other equity instruments, 1t will be possible to make an irrevocable
election at imtial recogmtion to recogmse realised and unrealised fair value gains and losses directly n equity through
the statement of comprehensive income [t will not be possible to recycle gains and losses in respect of such investments
to the iIncome statement although dividend income associated with such instruments will be recognised in the income
statement rather than being taken directly to equity Adoption of this standard, which has not vet been endorsed by the
EU, 1s not expected to have any impact on the financial results or position of the Company
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Prior year reclassifications

The following table sets out the balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 and the income statement for the year ended 31
December 2008 as presented in the 2008 financial statements of the Group with reclassifications made to present these
statements on a basis consistent with the presentation practices adopted within Lioyds Banking Group

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2008

As previously Balance sheet Restated
presented reclassifications
£m £m £m
ASSETS
Intangible Assets 270 8 - 2708
Property 77 4 - 774
Deferred costs 477 9 - 4779
Deferred tax assets (Note 1) - 670 670
Investment 1n subsidiaries (Note 2) 2,027 4 %127 1,114 7
Investment properties (Note 2) 1,491 2 (276 9) 1,214 3
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract and investment - 2,2704 2,270 4
contract with DPF habuities (Note 3)
Remsurance assets (Note 3) 9,734 4 (5,734 4) -
Prepayment and accrued income (Note 4) 41 4 (390) 24
Current tax receivable 78 - 78
Financial assets
Remsurers’ share of investment contract without DPF - 74565 7456 5
habilities (Note 3)
Derivative financial instruments 6655 (32) 662 3
Loans and receivables (Note 4) - 686 1 686 1
Equity investments (Note 5} 5,174 9 (5,174 9) -
Debt investments (Note 5) 8,580 6 (8,580 6) -
Investments at fair value through income (Note 5) - 15,0792 15,079 2
Insurance Receivables (Note 4) 49 49) -
Other receivables (Note 4) 6422 (642 2) -
Cash and cash equivalents 2893 - 2893
Total assets 29,4857 190 4 29,676 1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company’s equity
shareholders
Share caputal 700 - 700
Share premium 10 - 10
Retamed eamings 1,832 7 - 1,832 7
Total equity 1,903 7 - 1,903 7
Ltabilities
Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF habilities 10,742 0 6,166 0 16,908 O
{Note 6)
Unailocated surplus 469 2 - 469 2
11,2112 6,166 0 17,377 2
Deferred tax habihties (Note 1) 183 5 670 2505
Current tax payables - - -
Provisions for other liabiities and charges - 22 22
Accruals and deferred income (Note 7) 265 201 46 6
Financial habihties
Subordinated debt 1,319 5 (32) 1,316 3
Investment coatract without DPF labilities (Note 6) 13,934 5 (6,173 5) 7,761 0
Denvauve financial instruments 1311 - 1311
Other liabiliies (Note 7) 5413 177 2 7185
Borrowings 169 0 - 169 0
Other 1nsurance financtal habilines (Note 7) 654 (65 4) -
Total habilities 27.582.0 190 4 27,772.4
Total habshties and equity 29,485.7 190 4 29,676.1
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Prior year reclassifications (centinued)

The significant balance sheet reclassifications (none of which require re-measurement of an asset or hability) are 1n relation
to

1 — the reclassification from Deferred 1ax Liabthties to Deferred tax assets
2 - the reclassification of Investments 1n subsidiaries and Investment properties as Investments at fair value through income

3 — the reclassification of Rewnsurance assets to Rewnsurers’ share of insurance contract and investment contract with DPF
liabthties and Reinsurers” share of investment contract without DPF habilities

4 - the reclassificabon of Other recetvables, Insurance receivables and Prepayments and accrued imcome as Loans and
recetvables within financial assets

3 - the reclassification of Equity investments and Debt investments as Investments at far value through income, and the
reclassification of Debt investments as Other financial habilities

6 — the reclassification of Investment contract with DPF habihties as Insurance contract and investment contract with DPF
habilities

7 — the reclassification of Other habihities as Accruals and deferred income and the reclassification of Other insurance
financial hiabthities and Debt securities as Other hiabilities
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Prior year reclassifications (continued)

Balance Sheet as at 1 January 2008

As previously Balance sheet Restated
presented reclassifications
£m £m £m
ASSETS
Intangible Assets 2940 - 2940
Property 161 4 - 1614
Deferred costs 413 1 - 4131
Deferred tax assets (Note 1) - 205 205
Investment in subsidianies (Note 2) 6,159 2 (5,223 3) 9359
Investment properties (Note 2) 22741 (310 6) 1,963 5
Remnsurers’ share of insurance contract and investment - 2,294 2 2,294 2
contract with DPF habilines (Note 3)
Reinsurance assets (Note 3) 11,097 1 (11,097 1) -
Prepayment and accrued income 367 (19 4) 173
Current tax receivable 1057 - 1057
Financial assels
Remsurers’ share of investment contract without - 8,805 1 88051
DPF habihittes (Note 3)
Denivative financial instruments 101 5 (44 3) 572
Loans and receivables (Note 4) - 6269 626 9
Equity investments (Note 5) 5,962 9 (5,962 9) -
Debt investments (Note 5) 57756 (5,775 6) -
Investments at fair value through mcome (Note 5) - 17,272 4 172724
Insurance Receivables 49 5 (49 5) -
Other receivables (Note 4) 558 0 (558 0) -
Cash and cash equivalents 2678 - 2678
Total assets 33,256 6 (21 6) 33,2350
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves attributable to Company’s
equity shareholders
Share capital 1,629 0 - 1,629 0
Share premium 10 - 10
Other reserves 26 {2 6) -
Retained eamings 628 2 26 630 8
Total equity 2,260.8 - 2,260 8
Liabihties
[nsurance contract and mnvestment contract with DPF 8,012 1 7,203 4 15,2155
habilities (Note 6)
Unallocated surplus 1,497 4 - 1497 4
9,509 5 7,203 4 16,7129
Deferred tax habihities (Note 1) 3890 205 409 5
Current tax payables - - -
Provisions for other habilities and charges - 19 19
Accruats and deferred income (Note 7) 282 231 513
Financial liabihities
Subordinated debt 1,059 1 (44 3) 1,014 8
Investment contract without DPF liabilities (Note 6) 19,625 5 (7,201 2) 12,424 3
Denvative financial instruments 379 - 379
Other hiabihties (Note 7) 196 1 741 2702
Borrowings 514 - 514
Other insurance financial liabihties (Note 7) 99 1 (99 1) -
Total habilittes 309958 (21.6) 30,974 2
Total habilities and equity 33,256.6 {21.6) 33,235.0
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Prior year reclassifications (continued)

Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

The significant balance sheet reclassifications (none of which require re-measurement of an asset or Lability) are the same as
those as at 31 December 2008 described above this table

As previously Reclassifications 2008 (Restated)
presented
£m £m £m
Revenue
Gross earned premiums 7849 07 784 2
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {1552) - (1552)
Premiums net of remnsurance 6297 o7 6290
Fee and commission income 779 05 78 4
Finance income (Note 8) 46 0 (46 0) -
Investment income (Note 8) 19320 (1,185 5) 746 5
Net realised gamns/(fosses) on assets and habilities at 662 1 1231 7852
fair value though income (Note 9)
Net fair value gains/(losses) on assets and habihties at {3,1919) 1,168 6 (2,023 3)
fair value through income (Note 9)
Income from shares wn group undertakings (Note §) 600 (60 0) -
Total revenue 2158 - 2158
Expenses
Gross claims and benefits 9300 - 9300
Claims recoveries from remsurers (201 5) - (201 %)
7285 - 728 5
Change m msurance contract and investment contract 3,248 8 (1,037 4) 22114
with DPF liabilities (Note 10}
Change in mvestment contract without DPF liabihties (3 280 5) 205 8 {2,984 7)
(Note 10)
Change 1n remsurers’ share of habihities 238 741 6 165 4
Change 1n unallocated surplus (1,028 2y - {1,028 2)
(1,036 1) - (1,036 1)
Operating expenses (Note 11) 3607 409 401 6
Expenses for asset management services received (Note - 529 529
1)
Fee and commission expenses (Note 11} 938 (93 8) -
Finance costs 103 1 - 103 1
5576 - 5576
Total expenses 2500 - 2500
Loss before tax (342) - (342)
Taxation credst 296 1 - 2961
Profit for the year 2619 - 2619

The significant income statement reclassifications are in relation to

8 — the reclassification of interest on swap contracts and interest from group undertakings from Finance tncome to Investment

mecome

9 — the reclassification from Income from shares in group undertakings, Net reahsed gains/(losses) on assets and liabilities at
fair value though income and Net fair value gains/(losses) on assets and habilities at fair value through income to Investment

mcome

10 — the reclassification of the Change in investment contract with DPF habilities from Change 1in investment contract

without DPF habilities

11 — the reclassification of Expenses for asset management services received from Operating expenses and Fee and
commission expenses to Expenses for asset management services recerved




